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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Birla Estate Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the Ind AS financial statements of Birla Estates Private Limited (“the Company"),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS
Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the Ind AS financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
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Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133
of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a quarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
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effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safequards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matter stated in
the paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under rule 11(g);

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;
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(h)

®

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)b) and
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(9).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Ind
AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has been
paid / provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

ii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds by the Company to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
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us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any
material misstatement.

V. No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature
is not enabled for direct changes to data when using certain access rights, as
described in note 40 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with
in respect of this accounting software.

SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

P

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWC6618
Place of Signature : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements"” of our report of even date of Birla Estates Private Limited

Interms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books
of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipments.

(a)(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets.

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during
the previous financial year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)are held in
the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipments (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(e)There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable
and the coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate and no discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical
verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five crores
in aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the
Company. The quarterly statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement
with the books of accounts of the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to limited liability partnerships as follows:

(figures in INR lakhs)

Particulars Guarantees Loans
Aggregate amount granted / provided during the

year

- Subsidiaries > 52,869.74

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in
respect of above cases
- Subsidiaries 2,900.00 86,017.72
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Vi.

(b)

©

(d)

(e

®

During the year the investments made, guarantees provided, security given and the terms
and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantees
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties are not prejudicial
to the Company's interest.

The Company has granted loans during the year to three limited liability partnerships and
two companies, all five being its subsidiaries, where the schedule of repayment of principal
and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are regular.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than
ninety days.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties which was fallen due during the year, that have
been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans
given to the same parties.

As disclosed in note 6 to the Ind AS financial statements, the Company has granted loans
or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or without specifying any
terms or period of repayment to a company. Of this following are the details of the
aggregate amount of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters or
related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013:

(figures in INR Lakhs)

Particulars All parties  Promoters Related
parties
Aggregate amount of loans / - E 9318.67

advances in nature of loans

- Repayable on demand

Percentage of loans/ = = 10.83%
advances in nature of loans

to the total loans

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of the Company’s products,
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vii.

viii.

and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made
and maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(@) The Company is reqgular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-
tax, duty of customs, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the
information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year
end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods
and service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during
the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(@) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of
its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(@) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /
fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence,
the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.
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Xxii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

xvii.

xviii.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by the cost auditor or secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) There are no whistle Blower complaints received during the period.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act,
2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177
are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause
3(xiii) of the Order in so far as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company.

(@) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the year and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 38 to the Ind AS financial statements,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board
of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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XX. The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xx)(a) & 3(xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

bt

Per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership Number: 049365

UDIN: 25049365BMOAWC6618

Mumbai
April 30, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE Ind AS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BIRLA ESTATES PRIVATELIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act')

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements of
Birla Estates Private Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit
of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued
by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these Ind AS
financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these Ind
AS financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Ind AS Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind ASfinancial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Ind AS Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Ind AS financial statements to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to Ind AS
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to Ind
AS financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on [the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

@fé}ﬂ;\/ A/@%\

per Ravi Bansal ((;( MUMBA
Partner \EA
Membership Number: 049365 \
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWC6618
Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025
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Birla Estates Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

Note No. As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(¥ in Lakhs) (¥ in Lakhs)
| ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Property, plant and equipments 3 1,568.39 1,016.34
(b) Capital work in progress 5 1,937.78 206.87
(c) Investment property 3A 202.72 -
(d) Intangible assets 4 262.38 300.00
(e) Intangible assets under development b 213.15 87.71
(f) Financial assets
(i) Loans 6 76,699.05 35,461.01
(i) Investment 7 29,144.67 507.53
(iii) Other financial assets 13 15.20 216.19
(9) Deferred tax assets (Net) 28 4,699.10 4,705.01
(h) Non current tax assets (Net) 8 5,060.07 2,080.71
(i) Other non-current assets 9 82.12 28.85
SUB-TOTAL 1,19,884.63 44,610.22
CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 10 3,46,517.30 1,83,481.76
(b) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 1 45,656.84 1,988.00
(ii) Other bank balances 1A 1,725.76 -
(i) Loans 6 9,318.67 2,066.41
(iv) Investment 7 36,353.96 =
(v) Trade receivables 12 6,157.35 7,469.65
(vi) Other financial assets 13 988.80 353.96
(c) Other current assets 9 11,766.40 3,204.06
SUB-TOTAL 4,58,485.08 1,98,563.84
TOTAL ASSETS 5,78,369.71 2,43,174.06
1] EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 14 20,000.00 20,000.00
(b) Other equity 15 (11,806.95) (13,961.07)
SUB-TOTAL 8,193.05 6,038.93
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 3,39,785.25 1,82,130.21
(b) Provisions 17 914.26 772.07
SUB-TOTAL 3,40,699.51 1,82,902.28
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 16 22,457.49 5,994.76
(i) Trade payables 18
1) Outstanding dues from micro and small enterprises 698.89 413.76
2) Outstanding dues from other than micro and small enterprises 19,544.26 7,963.23
(iii) Other financial liabilities 19 7.643.47 2,428.54
(b) Provisions 17 541.50 314.78
(c) Other current liabilities 20 1,78,591.54 37,117.78
SUB-TOTAL 2,29,477.15 54,232.85
TOTAL 5,78,369.71 2,43,174.06
Material accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
ForSRBC & COLLP Birla Estates Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN - U70100MH2017PTC303291
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003
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Birla Estates Private Limited
Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31st March 2025

Particulars

vi

vil

Vil

Revenue from operations
Other income
Total income (I +11)

EXPENSES

(a) Costof land, construction and Other related real estate development cost
(b) Employee benefits expense

(c) Finance costs

(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense

(e) Other expenses

Total expenses (IV)

Profit / (Loss) before tax (llI-1V)

Tax expense

(a) Current tax

(b) Deferred tax

Total tax expense

Profit / (Loss) for the year (V- V1)

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Items that will not be re-classified subsequently to statement of profit or loss
(a) Re-measurement on defined benefits obligations

(b) Income tax relating to above items

Total other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income /(loss) (VI+VII)

Earnings per equity share: (Face value of Rs 10 per share)
(a) Basic earnings per share
(b) Diluted earnings per share

Material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Note No.

21
22

23
24
25
26
27

28

29
29

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(¥ in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
1,39,086.22 61,451.61
7,160.71 4,657.41
1,46,246.93 66,109.02
1,04,054.24 40,080.63
14,807.63 11,955.35
10,154.01 4,579.13
481.85 617.37
15,742.00 9,482.89
1,45,239.73 66,715.37
1,45,239.73 66,715.37
1,007.20 (606.35)
5.91 103.13
5.91 103.13
1,001.29 (709.48)
(25.44) (40.20)
(25.44) (40.20)
975.85 (749.68)
0.50 (0.35)
0.50 (0.35)

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Birla Estates Private Limited
CIN - U70100MH2017PTC303291

per Ravi Bansal Keyur Shah Yukti Taneja
Partner Chief financial officer Company secretary

Membership No: 049365 /”"

Place: Mumbai .:?'“\"Q\

5,
‘H) o
Date: April 30, 2025 // //
/(r‘- TUMBA y )
2\

\; ‘5'3 N I/
A
N \"";;0_ /

Katat Tazhtetil Jithendran
Managing Director and
Chief executive officer

DIN: 01181998

Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

Rajendra Kumar Dalmia

DIN: 00040951
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025
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Birla Estates Private Limited
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March 2025

For the year Ended For the year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
(¥ in Lakhs) (% in Lakhs)
A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net loss before tax 1,007.20 (606.35)
Add / (Less) :
Depreciation and amortisation expense 481.85 617.37
Interest expense 10,154.01 4,579.13
Interest income (6,707.36) (4,613.68)
Employee stock option plan expense 1,178.27 1,115.80
Loss/(gain) on sale of assets 4.86 89.02
Unrealised gain on sale of mutual fund (256.08) -
Interest on unwinding of security deposit (6.41) -
Sale of scrap 63.54 -
5,919.88 1,181.29
Working capital adjustments :
Decrease / (increase) in other assets (8,615.61) (217.97)
Decrease / (increase) in inventory (1,48,939.56) (87,516.73)
Decrease / (increase) in trade receivable 131230 (6,119.06)
Decrease / (increase) in Other financial assets (402.85) (296.41)
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities 1,41,473.76 (19,362.33)
(Decrease) / increase in provision 368.91 306.76
(Decrease) / increase in other financial liabilities 5,587.08 357.10
(Decrease) / increase in trade payables 11,866.16 3,060.04
2,650.19 (1,09,788.60)
Less: Tax paid (net of refund) (2,979.36) (1,088.97)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 5,590.71 (1,09,696.28)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of property plant and equipments and intangible assets (3,103.99) (1,141.77)
Proceed from sale of property, plant and equipments 43.79 25.45
investment in subsidaries (28,637.14) (128.03)
Investment in fixed deposits (7,370.58) (216.19)
Proceeds from sale of fixed deposits 7,400.00 -
Investment in mutual fund (36,097.88) -
Receipt of repayment of loan from subsidaries 2,861.49 3,487.12
Loan to subsidaries (52,869.74) (2,015.29)
Interest received 6.74 37.07
Interest received from subsidaries 7,861.51 7,235.04
Interest on non convertible debenture 125.29 -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES (1,09,780.51) 7,283.40
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds / (Payments) from/(of) long term borrowings 6,084.16 1,07,746.30
Repayment of non-current borrowings - (13,365.47)
Proceeds from long term borrowings from Holding Company (net) 1,71,761.14 17,772.37
Interest paid (24,515.66) (14,187.74)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 1,53,329.64 97,965.46
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 49,139.84 (4,447.42)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (4,006.76) 440.66
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 11) 45,133.08 (4,006.76)
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement
Cash and cash equivalents as per the above comprise of the following
Cash and cash equivalents 45,656.84 1,988.00
Bank overdraft (2,249.52) (5,994.76)
Other bank balance 112576 -
Balance as per cash flow statement 45,133.08 (4,006.76)
Material accounting policies - refer note 2
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & COLLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Birla Estates Private Limited
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003 CIN - U70100MH2017PTC303291
o /T‘o —4,_/_,‘

Keyur Shah
Chief financial officer

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

y/ 4
’ N
Membership No: 049365 ,?f,_\
Place: Mumbai ; 3
Date: April 30, 2025 il :

Company secretary

arat Tazhtetil Jithendran
Managing Director and
Chief executive officer

DIN: 01181998
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

Rajendra Kumar Dalmia
Director

DIN: 00040951
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025




Birla Estates Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

1. Corporate information

Birla Estates Private Limited having CIN No.U70100MH2017PTC303291 is a private company domiciled in India and is
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, applicable in India. The principal place of business of the company
is located at Birla Aurora, level 8, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai - 400030. The Company is principally engaged in real
estate business.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of directors on April 30, 2025.
2. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirement of Division Il of Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 1), as applicable.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial asset and liability which
have been measured at fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).
The financial statements are presented in Rs. (%) and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

® Held primarily for the purpose of trading

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

® Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

The normal operating cycle of the Company depends on signing of agreement, size of the project, phasing of the project, type
of development, project complexities, approvals needed and realisation of project into cash and cash equivalents and range
from 3 to 7 years. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current based
on operating cycle of respective projects. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current
based on a period of twelve months.

2.3 Fair Value Measurement

The company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, investments etc, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

° In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

° In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use. ///"g_%?\a\ N
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Birla Estates Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available

to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the

fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole:

* Level 1-Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

e Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

e Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

2.4 Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Goods and Service tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value added to
the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The Company recognises revenue from facility management services over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Company.

a) Sale of real estate units

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of residential units or service to customers, in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those residential units. The Company determines the performance
obligations associated with the contract with customers at contract inception and also determine whether they satisfy the
performance obligation over time or at a point in time. In case of residential units, the Company satisfies the performance obligation
and recognises revenue at a point in time i.e., upon completion, receipt of occupancy certificate and transfer of control to the
customers as per the agreement.

To estimate the transaction price in a contract, the Company adjusts the promised amount of consideration for the time value of
money if that contract contains a significant financing component. The Company when adjusting the promised amount of
consideration for a significant financing component is to recognise revenue at an amount that reflects the cash selling price of the
transferred residential unit.

b) Revenue from services

The Company recognises revenue from facility management services over time, using an input method to measure progress
towards complete satisfaction of the service, because the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Company.

c) Sale of land and development rights
Revenue is recognized at point in time with respect to contracts for sale of Land and Development Rights as and when the
control is passed on to the customers.

d) Interest Income
Interest income, including interest arising from other financial instruments, is accounted on an accrual basis at effective
interest rate (EIR method).




Birla Estates Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due,
a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade receivables
A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of
time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the
payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the
contract

2.5 Leases

At inception of contract, the Company assesses whether the Contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. At inception or on reassessment of a contract that contains a lease component, the Company allocates
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of their relative standalone price.

As a lessee

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received and

estimate of costs to dismantie. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and the estimated useful lives of the assets

The Company presents right-to-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘Property, plant and
equipment’.

ii) Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company generally uses
its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if the discount rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. The carrying amount is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from
achangein index or rate. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change
in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

iii) Short term leases and leases of low value of assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases. It also applies the lease of low-

value assets recognition exemption that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.




Birla Estates Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

2.6 Taxes

Income tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Current income tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate
of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is
measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Current tax assets and
current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended
to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and

liabilities.

GST paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST paid, except:

° When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case,
the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

e  When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of receivables or payables
in the balance sheet.

2.7 Property, plant and equipments

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition/construction, net of accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly

attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and initial estimate of decommissioning,

restoring and similar liabilities. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation

to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When significant
/&g;:.::::&arts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on

\




Birla Estates Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the
plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised to amortise the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction) less
their residual value over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases
the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition of property, plant and equipment which take substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use are also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put
to use.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
statement of profit and loss when the property, plant and equipment is derecognised.

Expenditure directly relating to construction activity is capitalised. Indirect expenditure incurred during construction period
is capitalised to the extent to which the expenditure is indirectly related to construction oris incidental thereto. Other indirect
expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not related to the construction

activity nor is incidental thereto is charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified
as capital advances under other non-current assets.

2.8 Depreciation on property, plant and equipments

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Asset Class Useful life
Buildings 4 years — 6 years
Computers 3 years
Plant and equipments 3 years — 10 years
Electric installations 3 years — 10 years
Furniture & fixtures 3- 10 years
Office equipments 3-10 years
Vehicles 5-10 years

The management has estimated the above useful life and the same is supported by technical expert which are different form
useful life prescribed in Companies Act, 2013.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

2.9 Investment properties

i) Recognition and initial measurement

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation, or both. Investment properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalisation
criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

ii) Subsequent measurement
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it

/m{obable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flo %@“g& pany. Though the Company measures
;,?/’Q; (',0'\ < ‘,\‘.\
f: % x tﬁ) \‘5\‘\
[ anhAl s ui{ MUMBA
A A /

Ny
S 3
\Qg’,& e Y




Birla Estates Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair
values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer who holds a
recognised and relevant professional qualification and has experience in the category of the investment property being
valued. Investment Properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any,
subsequently. Depreciation is provided from the date the assets are ready to use, on straight line method as per the useful
life of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has land in investment
property and hence there is no depreciation.

2.10 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Cost
of software capitalised is amortised over its useful life which is estimated to be a period of Six years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

2.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision
is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above.

2.13 Employee Benefits
Defined Contribution plans

Employee benefit in the form of Provident fund are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the respective fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme
as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company provides for retirement benefit in the form of gratuity. The Company’s liability towards this benefit is
determined on the basis of actuarial valuation using Projected Unit Credit Method at the date of balance sheet.

Periodic contributions are charged to the Statement of profit and loss. The Company’s liability is determined based on an
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

Compensated absences

ccumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 mo 'tﬁsptﬁﬁ\e‘ated as short-term employee benefit
< & COanx ea{ure" the expected cost of such absences

N
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as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting
date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes and this is shown under long term provisions in the Balance Sheet. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-
end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss and are not deferred. The Company
presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its
settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where the Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to
defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is presented as non-current liability.

Employee Share based payment
The Company'’s holding company has issued Stock option plan to certain employees of the company.

Equity-settled Transactions Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments at the grant date using Black-Scholes Model and Binomial Model. The fair value, determined at the
grant date of the equity settled share-based payments, is charged to Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss on a systematic
basis over the vesting period of the option, based on the Company's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in other equity.

In case of forfeiture/lapse stock option, which is not vested, amortised portion is reversed by credit to employee
compensation expense. In a situation where the stock option expires unexercised, the related balance standing to the credit
of the Employee Stock Options Outstanding Account is transferred within other equity. Cash-settled Transactions The cost of
cash-settled transactions is measured initially at fair value at the grant date using a Black-Scholes Merton Formula. This fair
value is expensed over the period until the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding liability. The liability is re-
measured to fair value at each reporting date up to, and including the settlement date, with changes in fair value recognised
in employee benefits expense.

2.14 Foreign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in Rs. (), which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at INR spot rate at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

2.15 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments including derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial
guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial
liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

2.16 Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Venture
The Company’s investment in its subsidiaries and joint venture are carried at cost.

2.17 Inventories

Real estate activity

Direct expenditure relating to construction activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) during
construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period
which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is charged to the statement
of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific identification to the construction and real
estate activity. Cost incurred/ items purchased specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/ received
Real Estate Projects - Construction work-in-progress: Represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area of the real estate
development projects or cost incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognised. Real estate inventory is valued
at lower of cost and net realisable value.

2.18 Earnings per share
Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

2.19 Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is
measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing. Borrowing costs allocated to
qualifying assets pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the
qualifying asset upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is
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liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

2.21 Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or loss and is
measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. The operating segments have been identified on the
basis of nature of product / services.

The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed the CEO as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) who is
assessing the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic decisions.

2A. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosures.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. Difference between actual results and estimates are
recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialised.

Estimates and assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company has based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

a) Employee benefit plans

The Company’s obligation on account of gratuity and compensated absences is determined based on actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved
in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment
benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in
response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation
rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in note 31.

b) Useful Lives of Property, plant and equipment:

The Company uses its technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for determining the economic life of an
asset/component of an asset. The useful lives are reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case
of a revision, the unamortised depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the assets.

c) Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax asset that can be recognized based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.
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(Z in Lakhs)
NOTE : 6 LOANS (at amortised cost) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current

Loans to subsidiaries
Unsecured, considered good
Loan to subsidiaries (refer note below) 76,699.05 9,318.67 35,461.01 2,066.41
Total 76,699.05 9,318.67 35,461.01 2,066.41

(a) Loan given to Avarna Projects LLP (Subsidiary)
(i) Non current:
Loan given to Avarna LLP amounting to Rs. 20,004.29 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 23,074.01 Lakhs) (inclusive of accrued interest) at an interest rate of 12% p.a. The repayment of the loan by
Avarna LLP to the Company shall be made from net sales revenue after payment of taxes, development cost, external project finance and other expenses as mentioned in the LLP deed.

Current:
Working capital loan given to Avarna LLP amounting to Rs. 2,352.34 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 2,065.65 Lakhs (inclusive of accrued interest). Rate of interest is 13.75% p.a.

(ii

(b) Loan given to Birla Tisya LLP (Subsidiary)
(i) Non current:
Loan given to Tisya LLP amounting to Rs. 2098.04 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 5,049.77 Lakhs) (inclusive of accrued interest) at an interest rate of 10% p.a.

(ii) Current:
Working capital loan given to Tisya LLP amounting to Rs. 0.10 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 0.28 Lakhs (inclusive of accrued interest). Rate of interest is 18% p.a.

(c) Loan given to Birla Arnaa LLP (Subsidiary)
(i) Non current:
Loan given to Araa LLP amounting to Rs. 6,679.31 Lakhs (31 March 2024: 7,337.23 Lakhs) (inclusive of accrued interest) at an interest rate of 10% p.a. The repayment of the loan by Amaa LLP to
the Company shall be made from customer collections to be received after launch of the project.

(ii) Current:
Working capital loan given to Arnaa LLP amounting to Rs. 0.35 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 0.48 Lakhs) (inclusive of accrued interest). Rate of interest is 15% p.a.

(d) Loan given to Vypak Properties Private Limited (Subsidiary)
(i) Non current:
Loan given to Vypak Properties Private Limited amounting to Rs. 23,420.23 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Nil) (inclusive of accrued interest) at an interest rate of 9% p.a. The repayment of the loan by
Vypak Properties Private Limited to the Company shall be made from customer collections to be received after launch of the project.

(ii) Current:
Working capital loan given to Vypak Properties Private Limited amounting to Rs. 488.44 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. Nil) (inclusive of accrued interest). Rate of interest is 9% p.a.

(e) Loan given to Ekamaya Properties Private Limited (Subsidiary)
(i) Non current:
Loan given to Ekamaya Properties Private Limited amounting to Rs. 24,497.18 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Nil) (inclusive of accrued interest) at an interest rate of 9% p.a. The repayment of the loan by
Ekamaya Properties Private Limited to the Company shall be made from customer collections to be received after launch of the project.

(i) Current:
Working capital loan given to Ekamaya Properties Private Limited amounting to Rs. 6477.43 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. Nil) (inclusive of accrued interest). Rate of interest is 9% p.a.

(f) Details of loan granted to related parties (inclusive of accrued interest) (as defined under Companies Act, 2013) that are repayable on demand

Particulars Amount of loan or % of the total loan and
advance in the advances in the nature
nature of loan of loans

outstanding

As at March 31, 2025

Loan to related parties (subsidiary companies) 9,318.67 10.83%
As at March 31, 2024
Loan to related parties (subsidiary companies) 2,066.41 5.51%
NOTE : 7 INVESTMENT As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1 Non - current investments
A Ir in idiary at cost less impairment, if any
10,000 (31 March 2024 - Nil) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Vvpak Properties Private Limited 1.00 -
10,000 (31 March 2024 - Nil) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Ekamaya Properties Private Limited 1.00 =
10,000 (31 March 2024 - Nil) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Vibhavya Properties Private Limited 1.00 =
10,000 (31 March 2024 - Nil) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties
Private Limited) 1.00 ®
10,000 (31 March 2024 - Nil) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Tarusa Properties Private Limited 1.00 -
10,000 (31 March 2024 - Nil) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Unnatam Properties Private Limited 1.00 -
B 1 in joint t d at cost less impairment, if any
8,99,999 (31 March 2024 - Nil) equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Vardhita Properties Private Limited (formerly known as Birla Century
Exports Private Limited) 49.18 -
C Investment in capital of Limited Liability Partnership firms at cost (Subsidiaries)
Avarna Projects LLP 241.00 241.00
Birla Tisya LLP 5.00 5.00
Birla Arnaa LLP 261.53 261.53

D Investment at Fair value through profit and loss
Quoted debt securities
14,291 (31 March 2024 - Nil) Non-convertible debenture of Rs 100,000 each fully paid up of Vardhita Properties Private Limited 14,291.00 =

Unquoted debt securities
14,29,09,569 (31 March 2024 - Nil) Optionally convertible debenture of Rs 10 each fully paid up of Vardhita Properties Private Limited 14,290.96 z

29,144.67 507.53
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NOTE: 8

NOTE: 9

Details of investments in Limited Liability Partnership firms (Subsidiaries)

Avarna Projects LLP
Birla Tisya LLP
Birla Arnaa LLP

Current investment

Investment at Fair value through profit and loss
Quoted

Investment in mutual fund

Aggregate book value of quoted investments
Aggregate market value of quoted investments
Aggregate value of unquoted investments

NON CURRENT TAX ASSET (Net)

TDS receivable
Total

OTHER ASSETS

(Unsecured, considered good, unless
otherwise specified)

Balances other than capital advances
Advance to vendors

Prepaid expenses

Cenvat/ GST receivable

Contract assets -Brokerage on sale of real estate inventories
Contract assets -Stamp duty on behalf of customers

Other receivable

Ernest Money Deposit

Balances with Government authorities (other than income taxes)
Total

”

TS * =~
Y

Share of partner in profit / loss (%)

As at

31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

50% 50%
40% 40%
47% 47%
36,353.96 -
36,353.96 =
50,644.96 -
50,644.96 -
14,853.67 507.53
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
5,060.07 2,080.71
5,060.07 2,080.71
As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current
- 2,770.36 & 661.18
= 221.32 = 197.39
- 39.57 - 45.05
- 8,181.37 - 1,499.87
- 209.79 - 800.57
= 243.99 - 5
- 100.00 - -
82.12 - 28.85 -
82.12 11,766.40 28.85 3,204.06
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NOTE : 10

NOTE : 11

NOTE : 11A

NOTE : 12

NOTE : 13
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INVENTORIES (at cost or NRV_whichever is lower)

As at
31 March 2025

(2 in Lakhs)

As at
31 March 2024

Construction work-in-progress (including land) 3,40,699.59 1,78,806.76
Completed residential units 5,817.71 4,675.00
Total 3,46,517.30 1,83,481.76
Movement in Inventory Construction Work in Progress

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Opening Construction work in Progress 1,78,806.76 86,041.08
Add: Cost Incurred during the year
Land Cost 58,189.20 88,711.90
Finance Cost 13,989.49 9,947.26
Other Construction and Development Cost 1,95,113.82 38,862.15
Total Cost 4,46,099.27 2,23,562.39
Less: Cost related to real estate inventory recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 1,04,054.24 40,080.63
Less: Cost Transferred to Finished Goods 1,142.71 4,675.00
Less: Transfer to investment property 202.72 -
Closing Construction Work in Progress 3,40,699.60 1,78,806.76
Note:
(a) For charge created on inventories, refer Note 16
(b) Borrowing cost inventoried during the year amounts to Rs. 13,989.49 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 9,947.25 Lakhs)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at As at

(At amortised cost)
Balances with banks
- Current accounts*

- Fixed deposits with maturity less than 3 months (Including accrued interest)

- Cheques in hand
Cash on hand
Total

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

15,623.48 1,731.46
28,673.18 -
1,359.87 256.21
0.31 0.33
45,656.84 1,988.00

*includes Rs. 9,376.75.22 lakhs (31 March 2024 - Rs. 1035.17 lakhs) held in escrow account for project under Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016 ("RERA"). The money can be

utilized for payments of specified projects only.

OTHER BANK BALANCES

- Fixed deposits with maturity more than 3 months (Including accrued interest)

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(At amortised cost)

Secured, considered good
Unsecured, considered good

Total

Of the above, trade receivables from:
- Related parties

- Others

Total

Notes:

As at
31 March 2025

1,725.76

As at
31 March 2024

1,725.76

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

6,157.35 7,469.65
6,157.35 7,469.65
5,314.01 5,353.67

843.34 2,115.98
6,157.35 7,469.65

(i) No trade receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade receivable are due from firms or private companies

respectively in which any director is a partner or a director or a member. Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 to 90 days of credit period.

(ii) Trade receivables ageing schedule

Particulars

Less than 6 months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More then Total

6 Months 1 year 3years
As at 31 March 2025
Undisputed trade receivables — considered 6,020.68 43.03 73.98 19.66 - 6,157.35
Total 6,020.68 43.03 73.98 19.66 - 6,157.35
As at 31 March 2024
Undisputed trade receivables — considered 5,652.46 1,030.36 786.84 - - 7,469.65
Total 5,652.46 1,030.36 786.84 - - 7,469.65
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(At amortised cost) Non Current Current Non Current Current
Unsecured, considered good
Security deposits - 381.17 . 353.96
Other receivables s 262.88 a -
Fixed deposit with remaining maturity more than 12 months . 231.99 216.19 -
Fixed deposit with remaining maturity less than 12 months 15.20 = - -
Interest accrued on non convertible debenture b 112.76 - -
Total 15.20 988.80 216.19 353.96




Birla Estates Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

NOTE : 14

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Authorised:
20,00,00,000 (31 March 2024: 20,00,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

(b) Issued, subscribed and paid up:
20,00,00,000 (31 March 2024: 20,00,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

(c) Terms / right attached to equity shares
20,00,00,000 (31 March 2024: 20,00,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each, fully paid up
The Company has only one class of equity share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the

Company after distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

(d) Reconciliation of the b

of shares

ding at the beginni

and at the end of the period

(% in Lakhs)

As at
31 March 2025

As at
31 March 2024

20,000.00 20,000.00
20,000.00 20,000.00
20,000.00 20,000.00
20,000.00 20,000.00

Particulars Opening Fresh Issue Closing Balance
Equity shares with voting rights
Year ended 31 March 2025
No. of Shares 20,00,00,000 - 20,00,00,000
Amount (¥ In Lacs) 20,000 - 20,000
Year ended 31 March 2024
No. of Shares 20,00,00,000 - 20,00,00,000
Amount (2 In Lacs) 20,000 - 20,000
(e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the company & shares held by holding company :
As at As at

Particulars

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

Number of shares held Number of shares held

Equity shares with voting rights

Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly known as Century Textiles and Industries Limited) (Holding Company)

% Holding Company

19,99,99,999
100.00%

19,99,99,999
100.00%

(f) The Company has not issued any equity share as bonus or for consideration other than cash and has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately preceding

31 march 2025.

(g) Details of shares held by promoters

NOTE : 15

Particulars No. of shares at the Change during the No. of shares at the % of Total shares % change during the
beginning of the year year end of the year year

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formely known as

Century Textiles and Industries Limited) (‘ABREL") 19,99,99,999 19,99,99,999 100.00% 0.00%

Atul Kedia, as nominee of ABREL 1 = 1 0.00% 0.00%
20,00,00,000 5 20,00,00,000 100.0% 0.0%

For the year ended March 31, 2024

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formely known as

Century Textiles and Industries Limited) ('ABREL') 19,99,99,999 » 19,99,99,999 100.00% 0.00%

Atul Kedia, as nominee of ABREL 1 - 1 0.00% 0.00%
2,00,00,000 - Q,O0,00,000 100.0% 0.0%

OTHER EQUITY As at As at

Retained earnings

Retained earnings

Employee stock option plan reserve
Total

(i) Nature and purpose of reserves

Retained earnings are the profits / (losses) earned / incurred by the Company till date.

(i) Employee stock option plan reserve

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

(14.101.02) (15.076.87)
2,294.07 1,115.80
{11,806.95) (13,961.07)

The Company's holding company has stock option scheme under which option to subscribe to holding company's share have been granted to certain employee of the Company. The reserve is used
to recognise the value of equity settled share based payments provided to employees as past of their remuneration
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NOTE : 16

NOTE : 17

(a

G

]

A

BORROWINGS (% in Lakhs)

(At amortised cost) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Non Current Current Non Current Current

Secured borrowings

Current maturity of long term debt (refer note (i) below) - 18,000.00 18,000.00 -
(i) Term loan of Rs. 180 Crore :- Repayable in 9 monthly instalments,

last repayment falling due in December 2025) (Rate of interest for term loan as on 31.03.2025

ranges from:- 8.85% p.a.)

(if) Term Loan from HDFC Bank (Refer note (ii) below ) 6,084.16 -
Repayable in 12 monthly instalments, last repayment falling due in 20 March 2030) (Rate of - - - -
interest for term loan as on 31.03.2025 - 8.80% p.a.)

(iii) Bank overdraft (Refer note i) - 0.44 - 5,994.76
(Working capital loan repayable on demand- Rate of interest on overdraft as at 31.03.2025
ranges from:- 8.75% p.a. to 9.05 p.a.%)

(iv) HDFC - Working capital demand loan (Refer note (ii) below) - 2,174.85 - -
(v) ICICI - Working capital demand loan (Refer note (i) below) - 74.23 - -
Term loan (LRD Loan) from Bajaj Finance 87,556.03 2,207.97 89,746.30 -

(Net of processing fees) (Repayable in 156 monthly instalments staring from September 2025,
last instalment falling due in August 2038) (Rate of interest as at 31-03-2025 :- 9.00% p.a.)
(refer note B below)

Unsecured

Loan from Holding Company 2,46,145.06 = 74,383.91 -
(Working capital loan - Rate of interest on loan as at 31.03.2025 :- 9 % p.a)

(refer note C below)

Total 3,39,785.25 22,457.49 1,82,130.21 5,994.76

Details of security :-

(i) Loan & overdraft from ICICI bank:

Exclusive security charge on followings :

a. Land, development rights and building situated at Shahad, Kalyan.

b. Unsold inventory and future scheduled receivable of Birla Vanya project.
c. Escrow account of Birla Vanya Project

(ii) Loan from HDFC:

w

a. First an exclusive mortgage of project land situated at Walkeshwar, Malabar hill, Mumbai, all construction thereon, both present and future and unsold units in the project.

b. First and exclusive charge/ mortgage on all tangible moveable asset, pertaining to the project, including moveable plant and machinery, machinery spares, tools and accessories, furtniture fixture,
vehicals and all other movable assets, pertaining to project, present and future.

c. First charge/ mortgage on all intangible assets, pertaining to the project, including but not limited to goodwill, intellectual property rights and undertaiking, present and future.

d. First charge/ mortgage on all current assets and receivables, both sold and unsold receivables pertaining to the project, including book debts, operating cashfiows, receivables, commissions,
revenue of whatsovever nature and wherever arising, present and future.

e. First charge on all bank accouts pertaining to the project, including but not limited to escrow account.

Details of security -

LRD (Lease rental discounting) Loan :-

a. First and exclusive charge by way of registered mortgage of Land & commercial tower of Birla aurora & Birla centurion situate at Worli.
b. Charge on escrow account of commercial lease rental.

Secondary security:
Corporate guarantee from Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly known as Century Textiles and Industries Limited), the Holding Company

During the previous year, the terms of the loan taken by the Company from its Holding Company were revised. As per the revised terms, the said loan is repayable by the Company on April 1, 2027;
with an option with the Company for early repayment of the loan basis availability of cash.

Loan covenant
Bank loans contains debt covenants relating to shareholding of the Company and that of the promoters of the Holding Company, which is duly satisfied throughout the financial year. The Company
has also satisfied all other debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank term loan. The other loans do not carry any debt covenant.

The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable during the year.

PROVISIONS As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Non Current Current Non Current Current
Provision for employee benefits
Leave entitlement 396.27 361.37 331.40 255.54
Gratuity (Refer note 31) 517.99 180.13 440.67 59.24

Total 914.26 541.50 772.07 314.78
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(% in Lakhs)
NOTE : 18 TRADE PAYABLES
(At amortised cost) As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade payable - micro and small enterprises 698.89 413.76
Trade payable - Other than micro and small enterprises 19,544.26 7,963.23
Total 20,243.15 8,376.99
Note :
(a) The above information has been provided as available with the company to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with the Company regarding the status
of suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act.
(b) Trade payables are non interest bearing and are normally settled on 60-90 days terms. There are no other amounts paid / payable towards interest / principal under the MSMED Act.
(c) Trade payables ageing schedule
(% in Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from invoice date Total
Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
As at 31 March 2025
Total undisputed outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 698.89 - - - 698.89
Total undisputed outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 16,898.02 1,117.00 1,350.97 178.27 19,544.26
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 17,596.91 1,117.00 1,350.97 178.27 20,243.15
As at 31 March 2024
Total undisputed outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 413.76 - - - 413.76
Total undisputed outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 6,368.74 1,332.93 144.03 117.52 7,963.23
enterprises and small enterprises
Total 6,782.50 1,332.93 144.03 117.52 8,376.99
NOTE : 18 OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES As at As at
(At amortised cost) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 74.19 446.34
Earnest money on booking of residential flats 855.38 116.92
Sinking fund deposit from customers (refer note a) 497.27 260.59
Refundable security deposit 4,200.00 -
Employee related dues 1.827.44 1,555.00
Other payables 189.19 49.69
Total 7,643.47 2,428.54
Note a) Sinking fund deposits represents amount received from residential customer which will be transfer to society after their formation.
NOTE : 20 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES As at As at

Advance received from customers against sale of flat
Advance from customer against maintenance charge
Payable to Society / association

Development rights payable

Statutory dues

- Tax deducted at source

- Goods & Service Tax

- Provident fund payable

- Other dues

I

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

45,650.54 33,613.83
1,110.66 588.16
601.90 -
1,26,863.34 -
1,190.63 768.77
3,080.33 2,076.05
89.89 67.39
4.25 3.58
1,78,591.54 37,117.78




Birla Estates Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025 (% in Lakhs)
NOTE : 21 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Revenue from contract with customers
Development management fees (including facility management & overhead recovery) 17,105.36 14,943.27
Revenue from sale of residential flat 68,252.74 45,611.22
Sale of development rights 52,542.97 -
Other operating income
Other Charges on sale of Flat 1,115.87 894.68
Cancellation Charges on Flat sale 69.28 244
Total 1,39,086.22 61,451.61

NOTE : 22

Note (a) - Transaction price

Transaction price as per agreement is same as revenue from contract with customers.

Note (b) - Disaggregation of revenue information

The company us is engaged Primarily in the business of real estate construction, development and providing facility management services to real estate developers.

Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
India 1,39,086.22 61,451.61
Outside India = A
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,39,086.22 61,451.61
Timing of revenue recognition

Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Goods transferred at a point in time 1,21,980.86 46,508.34
Services transferred over time i 17,105.36 14,943.27
Total revenue from contracts with customers 1,39,086.22 61,451.61
Note (c) - Contract balances As at As at

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract liabilities - Advance from customers against sale of flats 45,650.54 33,613.83
Trade receivables 6,157.35 7,469.65
Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilities balances during the year are as follows:
PARTICULARS Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Contract liabilities
Opening balance 33,613.83 55,789.97
Advance received during the year and not recognized as revenue 80,289.45 23,435.08
Revenue recognised during the year (68,252.74) (45,611.22)
Closing balance 45,650.54 33,613.83
Note (d) R iling the of revenue r ised in the st of profit and loss with the contracted prices
Revenue as per contract prices 1,39,086.22 61,451.61
Adjustment
Discount & -
Revenue from the contract with customers 1,39,086.22 61,451.61

Note (e) - Remaining performance obligation

There are no remaining performance obligations outstanding as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 with respect to providing development management services to real estate developers.

In case of residential units, the company satisfies the performance obligation and recognise the revenue at a point in time i.e. upon transfer of control of residential unit. For the projects where
company has not satisfied the performance obligation as at 31 March 2025, it expects to recognise the revenue in the following time band

Time band
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
More than 3 years 4,54,957.28 -
Less than 3 years 1,70,511.21 76,861.41
OTHER INCOME Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Interest income
On loans given to subsidiaries 6,641.33 4,598.76
On fixed deposit 8.01 -
On income tax refund - 23.20
On unwinding of security deposit 6.41 118
On delay payment 58.02 13.77
On non convertible debenture 125.29 -
Fair value gain on mutual fund 241.96 -
Realised gain on redemption of mutual fund 14.12 -
Miscellaneous income 65.57 20.53

Total ” 7,160.71 4,657.41




Birla Estates Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

NOTE : 23

NOTE : 24

NOTE : 25

NOTE : 26

NOTE : 27

COST OF LAND, CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER RELATED REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT COST

Cost of land, construction and other related real estate development cost

Total

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Salaries, wages, bonus etc.

Contributions to provident fund (Refer note 31)
Gratuity expenses (Refer note 31)

Staff welfare expenses

Employee stock option plan (Refer note 32)
Total

FINANCE COSTS

Interest expense on borrowings from banks

Interest expense on borrowings from Holding Company
Interest expense on bank overdraft and WCDL

Interest expense on Loan from Finance company

Other borrowing cost
Unwinding of discount
Less :- Finance costs inventoried

Total

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

Depreciation on property, plant and equipments (Refer note 3)
Amortization on intangible assets (Refer note 4)
Total

OTHER EXPENSES

Buildings repairs

Rent

Rates and taxes

Advertisement and publicity

Travelling expenses

Payment to auditors (Refer note A below)
Miscellaneous expenses

Loss on sale of assets

Insurance

Legal and professional fees

Brokerage expenses on sale of flat
Stamp duty on sale of flat

Corporate social responsibility expense
Total

Note A - Payment to auditors
As auditors (Including taxes)

Statutory audit fees
Tax audit fees

In other capacity
-Certification services

Out of pocket expense

(% in Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,04,054.24 40,080.63
1,04,054.24 40,080.63
Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

12,676.21 10,046.32
474.00 362.15
204.30 135.87
274.85 295.21
1,178.27 1,115.80
14,807.63 11,955.35
Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
1,615.00 1,342.84
14,112.55 7,581.87
478.40 41595
7,912.30 5,173.92
17.70 11.80
7.55 -
(13,989.49) (9,947.25)
10,154.01 4,579.13
Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

404.25 572.15
77.60 4522
481.85 617.37
Year Ended Year Ended

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

347.30 172.42
1,064.96 958.97
24.95 62.71
6,119.91 2,097.34
712.28 754.69
27.77 23.90
1,915.03 1,213.14
4.86 89.02
129.51 111.45
2,828.07 2,945.75
1,385.80 1,053.50
881.56 -
300.00 -
15,742.00 9,482.89
20.65 18.88
2.95 2.36
3.90 2.66
0.27 -
27.77 23.90
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NOTE : 28

NOTE : 29

NOTE : 30

a)

b)
c)

d)

e)

INCOME TAX

Tax expense recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss

Current tax
Deferred tax

Year Ended
31 March 2025

(% in Lakhs)

Year Ended
31 March 2024

In respect of current year 591 103.13

In respect of earlier years (Refer note (ii)) -
Net tax exp ised in the S Profit and Loss 591 103.13
| tax r ised in other h i % =
Amounts recognised directly in equity = =
Reconciliation of i tax and the ing profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:
Profit/ (Loss) before tax 1,007.20 (606.35)
Income tax calculated at 25.17% (31 March 2024: 25.17%) 253.51 (152.62)
Effect of expenses that is non-deductible in determining taxable profits 67.87 255.75
True up impact of Deferred Tax (315.47) -
Income tax (income) recognised in profit or loss 591 103.13
Note:
(i) The tax rate used for above tax reconciliation for 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024 is 25.17%.
The movement in deferred tax assets during the year ended 31 March 2025

Recognized in profit and loss Recognized in other
As at pertaining to earlier pertaining to current comprehensive As at

Movement during the year ended 31 March 2025

income

March 31, 2024 years year March 31, 2025
(i) Tax losses (4,028.52) - 30.88 - (3.997.64)
(ii) Property plant and equipments incl. intangible assets (122.13) - 5.20 - (116.93)
(iii) Provision for leave encashment and gratuity (273.54) - (92.88) - (366.42)
(iv) Expenses allowable for tax purpose when paid (280.82) - 62.71 - (218.12)
Deferred tax asset (4,705.01) - 591 - (4,699.10)
The movement in deferred tax assets during the year ended 31 March 2024
Recognized in profit and loss Recognized in other
As at comprehensive As at
Movement during the year ended 31 March 2024 March 31, 2023 pertaining to earlier pertaining to current income March 31, 2024
years year
(i) Tax losses (4,572.41) - 543.89 - (4,028.52)
(i) Property plant and equipments incl. intangible assets (37.69) - (84.44) - (122.13)
(iii) Provision for leave encashment and gratuity (186.22) - (87.32) - (273.54)
(iv) Expenses allowable for tax purpose when paid (11.83) - (268.99) - (280.82)
Deferred tax asset (4,808.14) - 103.13 - (4,705.01!
EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS) Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Profit / (Loss) for the year for basic and diluted EPS 1,001.29 (709.48)
Weighted average number of equity share outstanding for diluted and basic EPS 20,00,00.000 20,00,00,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share () 0.50 (0.35)
CONTINGENT LIABILITY & COMMITMENTS AND CORPORATE GUARANTEES
Year Ended Year Ended

GUARANTEES GIVEN

i) Birla Tisya LLP

Other commitments:

31 March 2025

2900

31 March 2024

2900

The Company has commitments amounting to Rs. Nil as at 31 March 2025 (31 March 2024: Rs. 660.29 Lacs) towards funding requirements of the subsidiaries in accordance with the terms of LLP

deed between the Company and its respective subsidiaries.
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Note 31: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Disclosures pursuant to - "Employee benefits expense”

(a) Defined contribution plan:
The Company'’s contribution to provident fund amounting to Rs. 474.00 Lakhs (31 March 2024: Rs. 362.15 Lakhs) has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss under the head
employee benefits expense.

(b) Defined benefit plan:
i) Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan (non-funded) as at 31 March 2025.The Company’s defined benefit gratuity plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires

contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the act, employee who has completed five years of
service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefits provided depends on the member’s length of service and salary at retirement age.

The significant actuarial assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Valuation as at

Gratuity 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Employee attrition rate 7.00% 7.00%
Discount rate 6.66% 7.15%
Expected rate of salary increase 8.00% 8.00%

Defined benefit plans — as per actuarial valuation on 31 March 2025

Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

l. (a) Expense recognised in the Statement of profit and loss

Current service cost 170.40 110.35
Net interest expense 33.90 25.52
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 204.30 135.87

1. (b) Included in other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of (gain) / loss 25.44 40.20
Return on plan asset ' -

2544 40.20

II. Change in the obligation during the year ended 31 March 2025
1. Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 499.91 364.90
2. Liability to be Transferred in from holding company 19.98 -
3. Current service cost 170.40 110.35
4. Interest Expense 33.90 2652
5. Benefits paid (51.51) (41.06)
6. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Remeasurement gains / (losses)

- Actuarial gain / loss arising from: - -

i. Experience Adjustments 25.44 40.20
Present value of defined benefit Obligation at the end of the year 698.12 499.91
lll. Change in fair value of assets during the year
1. Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year - -

2. Fair Value of plan assets to be transferred in from holding company - -
3. Recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement gains / (losses)
- Actual Return on plan assets in excess of the expected return - -
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year - -
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:
Principal assumption Year Changes in Impact on defined benefit obligation
assumption
Increase in Decrease in
assumption assumption
Discount rate 2025 1% (635.39) 726.41
2024 1% (31.53) 35.91
Salary growth rate 2025 1% 723.78 (636.86)
2024 1% 34.09 (30.53)
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation for the next 10 years (undiscounted amount)
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Within 1 year 180.12 59.24
1-2year 40.97 104.61
2-3year 31.37 35.29
3-4 year 48.45 29.82
4 -5 year 46.55 38.75
5-10 years 205.60 160.03
Total 553.06 427.74

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2025 is 6.14 years (31 March 2024: 6.31 years)
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Note 32: Employee Stock Option Scheme

During the year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of the H
aggregate grant of 42,439 (March 31, 2024: 12,27,535) stock options to the eligible employees of Birla
CTIL Employee Stock Option Scheme 2023 (‘the Scheme’).

The Scheme is implemented through the CTIL Employee Welfare Trust. The Trust had
Holding Company considered Trust as its extension and shares held b

Scheme are given hereunder:

olding Company has approved on September 24, 2024 and March 07, 2025, an
Estates Private Limited, a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of the Holding Company under

purchased 12,52,480 equity shares of the Holding Company from market as per the Scheme. The
y the said Trust are treated as treasury shares which has been adjusted with the other equity. The details of the

5 Tranche IV Tranche Il Tranche 1 & Il
Particulars
Option 1 Option 2 Option 1 Option 2 Option 1 Option 2
No. of Options Granted 3,963 14,998 4,907 18,571 2,82,839 9,44,696
22-06-2023 & 01- | 22-06-2023 & 01-
Grant Date 07-03-2025 07-03-2025 24-09-2024 24-09-2024 12.2023 12.2023
Grant Price (Rupee Per Share) 758.55 758.55 758.55 758.55 758.55 758.55
Market Price on the Date of Grant (Rs.) 1,959.25 1,959.25 2,825.92 2,825.92 827.45 827.45
Fair Value on the Date of Grant of Option (Rs. Per Share) 1,361.57 1,193.23 2,214.25 2,013.18 400.25 178.80
Method of Settlement Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity Equity
Method of Accounting Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value
Graded Vesting Plan 1/3 each, over 3 | Achievement of | 1/3 each, over 3 | Achievementof | 1/3 each, over 3 | Achievement of
years performance years performance years performance
milestone milestone milestone
Normal Exercise Period 3 years from the | 52 months from | 3 years from the | 57 months from | 3 years from the | 72 months from
date of vesting | the date of grant | date of vesting | the date of grant | date of vesting | the date of grant

Movement of Options Granted along with Weighted-Average Exercise Price (WAEP)

Current Year

Previous Year

Options: Unvested at the end of the year
Exercisable at the end of the year

Nos WAEP (Rs) Nos WAEP (Rs)
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 12,27,535 758.55 - -
Granted during the year 42,439 758.55 12,27,535 758.55
Exercised during the year 83,780 758.55 - -
Lapsed/Cancelled during the year 68,725 758.55 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 11,17,469 758.55 12,27,535 758.55

Fair Valuation

The fair value of options used to compute proforma net income and earnin

and Monte Carlo simulation approach.

The Key Assumptions in Black-Scholes Model and Monte Cario simulation approach for calculating fair value as on the date of grant are:

gs per equity share has been done by an independent Valuer on the date of grant using Black-Scholes Model

ESOS - 2023 Tranche IV Tranche Ill Tranche | & I
Monte Carlo Monte Carlo Monte Carlo
Method used Slgcleseholes simulation Black Scholes simulation Black Schles simulation
Model Model Model
approach approach approach
Risk-Free Rate 6.49% 6.49% 6.60% 6.61% 6.92% 6.92%
Option Life (Years) 1/3 each, over 3 | Achievement of | 1/3 each, over 3 | Achievementof | 1/3 each, over 3 | Achievement of
years performance years performance years performance
milestone milestone milestone
Expected Volatility 42.23% 42.35% 41.17% 41.62% 46.27% 32.06%
Dividend Yield 0.25% 0.25% 0.18% 0.18% 0.75% 0.75%

Employee Stock Options expenses of Rs. 1178.27 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 1115.80 lakhs) has been recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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Note 33: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE
1 Relationships:
Where control exists:
(a) Holding Company:
Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly known as Century Textiles and Industries Limited)

(b) Subsidiaries
Avarna Projects LLP
Birla Tisya LLP
Birla Arnaa LLP
Vypak Propeérties Private Limited
Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
Vibhavya Properties Private Limited
Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Tarusa Properties Private Limited
Unnatam Properties Private Limited

(c) Joint Ventures :
Vardhita Properties Private Limited (formerly known as Birla Century Exports Private Limited)

(d) Entites over which directors or directors of Holding Compnay have significant influence :
Svatantra Online Services Private Limited
Vyas Giannetti Creative
Saatvik India Foundation

(d) Key Management Personnel (KMP):
Mr. KT Jithendran (MD and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Keyur Shah (Chief Financial Officer) (Appointment w.e.f. 15 May 2023)
Mr. Manoj Fitkariwala (Chief Financial Officer) (Resignation w.e.f. 31 May 2023)
Ms. Yukti Taneja (Company Secretary)

(e) List of Non Executive Directors
Mrs. Vandana Pai (Resignation w.e.f. 31 May 2023)
Mr. R K Dalmia
Mrs. Preeti Vyas (Appointment w.e.f. 13 June 2023)

(2 in Lakhs)
Name of the related party Transaction during the year Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly know as  [Development management fee income 10,008.02 9,408.70
Century Textiles and Industries Limited) Facility management fee income 449.61 416.31
Corporate Bank guarantee commission 119.73 72.16
Rent charges (including CAM) 664.80 795.61
Revenue share expenses 5,689.43 2,836.06
Loan taken 1,75,630.14 1,35,845.74
Loan repaid 3,868.99 1,18,073.37
Interest expense on loan from Holding Company 14,169.53 7,583.01
Deemed Capital Contribution by Holding Company 1,178.27 1,115.80
(refer note no. 32)
Purchase of TDR 1,234.66 -
Avarna Projects LLP Development management fee income 2,228.11 2,791.07
Loan given 662.74 1.04
Loan repaid including interest 6,000.00 4,402.24
Interest income on loan given 2,554.23 3,083.74
Birla Tisya LLP Partner's withdrawal 1,200.00 160.00
Development management fee income 1,444.76 1,280.42
Overhead recovery fees 128.25 128.25
Loan given 1.22 1.94
Loan repaid including interest 2,166.55 1,926.58
Interest income on loan given 413.42 552.92
Birla Arnaa LLP Development management fee income 2,324.87 822.96
Overhead recovery fees 258.16 95.57
Loan given 2.55 2,012.30
Loan repaid including interest 1,356.45 4,233.34
Interest income on loan given 695.83 961.96
Vypak Properties Private Limited Investment in equity share 1.00 -
Loan given 22,509.73 -
Interest income on loan given 1,554.39 -
Ekamaya Properties Private Limited Investment in equity share 1.00 -
Loan given 29,693.50 -
Interest income on loan given 1,425.07 -
Vardhita Properties Private Limited (formerly known|lnvestment in equity share 49.18 -
as Birla Century Exports Private Limited) Investment in non converible debentures 14,291.00 -
Investment in optionally converible debentures 14,290.96 -
Interest income on non convertible debenture 125.29 -
Development management fee income 263.57 -
Sale of development rights 52,542.97 -




Birla Estates Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025

(% in Lakhs)
Name of the related party Transaction during the year Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Vibhavya Properties Private Limited Investment in equity share 1.00 -
Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as
Adhyasha Properties Private Limited) Investment in equity share 1.00 =
Tarusa Properties Private Limited Investment in equity share 1.00 -
Unnatam Properties Private Limited Investment in equity share 1.00 -
Svatantra Online Services Private Limited Purchase of Gift boxes 18.00 123.58
Vyas Giannetti Creative AV- Logo transition 17.11 7.35
Saatvik India Foundation Lease rental Income (Re.1.25/-) -
Reimbursement of Expenses - (Receipt - Stamp Duty) 300.51 -
Key Management Personnel* Remuneration to KMP 1,217.95 1,094.04
Sitting fees paid to Non Executive Directors Sitting fees 9.44 8.00
Name of the related party Balance outstanding As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly know as Borrowing 2,46,145.06 74,383.91
Century Textiles and Industries Limited) Trade payables 4,609.88 3,329.76
Trade receivable 252.85 3,431.91
Avarna Projects LLP Loan balance including interest accrued 22,356.63 25,139.66
Trade receivable - 1,806.80
Birla Tisya LLP Loan balance including interest accrued 3,458.14 5,210.04
Trade receivable 74.15 66.43
Birla Amaa LLP Loan balance including interest accrued 6,679.66 7,337.72
Trade receivable 480.12 47.68
Vardhita Properties Private Limited (formerly known
as Birla Century Exports Private Limited) Trade receivable 4,511.01 -
Vypak Properties Private Limited Loan balance including interest accrued 23,908.68 -
Ekamaya Properties Private Limited Loan balance including interest accrued 30,974.61 -
Key Management Personnel Remuneration to KMP 200.49 200.49

* Key Managerial Personnel are entitled to post-employment benefits and other long term employee benefits recognised as per Ind AS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits'
in the financial statements. As these employee benefits are lump sum amounts provided on the basis of actuarial valuation, the same is included above on
payment basis.

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The development management and facility management fee, rent charges, revenue share, overhead recovery, sale of development rights and loans
from/to related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm'’s length transactions. The non current borrowings are generally
repayable after period of 5 years from project surplus at interest rates of 9% per annum. Outstanding balances at the period-end are unsecured and
settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts
owed by related parties (31 March 2024: INR Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the
related party and the market in which the related party operates.
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(% in Lakhs)

Note 34: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the company'’s capital management, equity includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the
Company's capital management is to maximize the shareholder value. The Company’s capital management objectives are to maintain equity including all reserves to protect economic viability and to finance
any growth opportunities that may be available in future so as to maximize shareholders’ value. The Company is monitoring capital using debt equity ratio as its base which is debt to equity.

31-Mar-2025 31-Mar-2024
Debt (A) 3,62,316.93 1,88,571.31
Equity (B) 8,193.05 6,038.93
Debt to equity ratio (A/ B) 44.22 31.23

Note 35 : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings, trade payables and security deposit. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, loan to subsidiaries
and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company’s senior management provides assurance
that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company’s policies and
risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. It arises mainly from trade receivables and other financial
assets. Customer credit risk resulting from sale of properties is managed by requiring customers to pay contract amount before transfer of ownership, therefore, substantially eliminating the Company’s
credit risk in this respect.

B. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks — interest rate risk,
currency risk and other price risk in a fluctuating market environment. Financial instrument affected by market risks includes loans and borrowings, deposits and other financials assets.

The Company has designed risk management frame work to control various risks effectively to achieve the business objectives. This includes identification of risk, its assessment, control and monitoring at
timely intervals.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relates to the outstanding balance as at 31 March 2025 and 31 March 2024.
The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt are all constant in place at 31 March 2025.
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held at 31 March 2025 and 31

March 2024.

(i) Currency risk
The Company is not exposed to currency risk in current financial year as it does not have any foreign currency transactions.

(ii) Interest rate risk
The Company manages interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate of interest on loans and borrowings. To manage this, the Company has taken fixed rate of interest on
borrowings from holding company and loans from banks are linked to MCLR rate of the bank, which are variable.

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company's

profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Currency Increase / decrease  Effect on loss
in basis points before tax

31 March 2025 INR +50 580.49

INR -50 (580.49)
31 March 2024 INR +50 568.71

INR -50 (568.71)
Particulars Total Floating rate Fixed rate

Borrowings Borrowings Borrowings

As at 31 March 2025 3,62,242.74 1,16,097.68 2,46,145.06
As at 31 March 2024 1,88,124.97 1,13,741.06 74,383.91

(iii) Equity Price Risk
The Company is exposed to equity price risk arising from equity investment. Equity investments are held for strategy rather than trading purpose. The Company does not actively trade these investments.
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C. Liquidity risk

(i) Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows on daily,

of the year which is sufficient for repayments getting due in the ensuing year.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturit

based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest dat

monthly and yearly basis. The Company ensures that there is a free credit limit available at the start

y for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up

e on which the Company can be required to pay.

(% in Lakhs)
Particulars On Demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total
months

As at 31 March 2025
Borrowings 0.44 20,249.08 2,207.97 2,76,520.18 63,265.00 3,62,242.68
Trade payables

Trade payables - micro and small enterprises - 698.89 - - - 698.89

Trade payables - other than micro and small enterprises - 19,544.26 - - - 19,544.26
Other financial liabilities - 7,643.47 - - - 7,643.47
Total 0.44 48,135.70 2,207.97 2,76,520.18 63,265.00 3,90,129.30
As at 31 March 2024
Borrowings 5,994.76 - 15,651.21 1,54,743.17 96,736.13 2,73,125.26
Trade payables

Trade payables - micro and small enterprises - 413.76 - - - 413.76

Trade payables - other than micro and small enterprises - 7,963.23 - - - 7.963.23
Other financial liabilities - 2,428.54 - - - 2,428.54
Total 5,994.76 10,805.53 15,651.21 1,54,743.17 96,736.13 2,83,930.79

(iii) Maturities of financial assets

The following table details the Company’s expected maturity for its non
including interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of
liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets
information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company’s liquidity risk management as the

(% in Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Le;i:::g 3 3 to 12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Cash and cash equivalents - 45,656.84 - - = 45,656.84
Loans 9,318.67 - - - 76,699.05 86,017.72
Trade receivables - 6,157.35 - - = 6,157.35
Other financial assets - 988.80 15.20 - - 1.004.00
Total 9,318.67 52,802.99 15.20 - 76,699.05 1,38,836.91
As at 31 March 2024
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,988.00 - - - 1,988.00
Loans 2,066.41 - 35,461.01 - - 37,527.42
Trade receivables - 7,469.65 - - - 7,469.65
Other financial assets - 353.96 216.19 - - 570.15
Total 2,066.41 9,811.61 35,677.20 - - 47,555.22
Note 36 : FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
(% in Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March 2025 |As at 31 March 2024
Financial liabilities (amortized cost)
Borrowings (including interest accrued) 3,62,316.93 1,88,571.31
Trade payables 20,243.15 9,931.99
Other financial liabilities 7,643.47 427.20
Total 3,90,203.55 1,98,930.50
Financial assets (amortized cost)
Cash and cash equivalents 45,656.84 1,988.00
Loans 86,017.72 37,527.42
Trade receivables 6,157.35 7,469.65
Other financial assets 1.004.00 570.15
Total 1,38,835.91 47,555.22
Financial asset/ liabilities kaipvaloesEs at ?" vralll:e
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Srahy

Financial asset valued at fair value through profit and loss:
Investments

Quoted debt securities 14,291.00 - Level 1

Unquoted debt securities 14,290.96 - Level 2
Investment in mutual fund 36,353.96 - Level 1

Valuation technique and key input used: Fair value is determined using discounted future cash flows, which are estimated at the end of the reporting period, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk

of the Company

The fair values of the Investment in Mutual fund are based on the price quotations at the reporting date

Note 37 :- SEGMENT REPORTING

Based on the "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Board of Directors evaluates the Com|
various performance indicators of business, the segments in which the Compan

recognise as the sole business segment. Hence disclosure of segment- wise information is not required and accordingly not provided.

Y
e ~

pany's performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of
y operates. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development which the Management and CODM
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of CTIL Community Welfare Foundation

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CTIL Community Welfare Foundation,
(Company Limited by Share Capital u/s 8) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st
March, 2025, the Statement of Income and Expenditure (Including Other Comprehensive Income), the
Statement of changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the Year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
informaticn (hereinatter referred to as ‘Financial Statement').

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the
Act’) in the manner so required, and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Slandards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

ules, ,U‘ . as amended (“Ina AS") and other acoounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affars of the Company as at 318 March, 2025, its Deficit including other comprehensive income,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the Year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SA's), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the "Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have cobtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

ey Audit Maiters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements for the financial Year ended 31st March 2025. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Information Cther than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Director's report but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other mformatlon and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed; we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report on in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards () specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SA's will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We are also:

> ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mlsrepresentanons or the override of
internal control. -
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> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has an adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
make it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our Audit work and in evaluating the results of our work and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

This report does not include a statement on the matter specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies
(Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the order); issued by the Central Government of India in terms of sub-
section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, Since the Company is registered under section 8
of the Companies Act, 2013, and accordingly the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the order) is
not applicable to the company.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.
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The Balance Sheet, Statement of Income and Expenditure including the statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of accounts.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act read with relevant Rules issued thereunder.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March
2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
no remuneration has been paid by the Company to its directors during the current Year.
Hence, we have nothing to report in this regard.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure - A,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 in our opinion and to the best of
information and according to the explanations given to us:

I The company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

li.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts, including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. ~ There is no amount to be transferred to the Investor Education Undertaking Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv.  (i)The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; s
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(i) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received
by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company
shall. whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(i) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

v.  The Company is restricted by its Article of Association to distribute dividends as well
as the Company has not declared and paid any Dividend during the Year ended on
31st March 2025 as per section 123 of the Company’s Act, 2013. Hence, we have
nothing to report in this regard.

vi. Based on our examination, which included test checks, the company has used
accounting - software for maintaining its books of accounts which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our
audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being tampered
with. It was not possible for us to verify if the Company was taking daily backups of
accounting software in the absence of any evidence available to that effect.

i For M.L. SHARMA & CO.
T inkme,  FIRM REG. NO.109963W.
CHARTER[-'J]) AXCCOUNTANTS

164

Place of Signature: Mumbai % /4 (Vikash L. Bajaj) Partner

Date: 05" May 2025 Wf0accOt«  Membership No.104982
oy UDIN: 25104982BMMKGW8510
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ANNEXURE - “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

The Annexure referred to in our Report of even date to the Members of CTIL Community Welfare
Foundation for the Year ended 31st March 2025. We report that:

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CTIL Community Welfare
Foundation, (the Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the Year ended on that date.

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI). These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial
Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

_ We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future Years are subject o the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31st March, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For M.L. SHARMA & CO.
. FIRM REG. NO.109963W.
% CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place of Signature: Mumbai (Vikash L. Bajaj) Partner

Date: 05" May 2025 Membership No.104982
UDIN: 25104982BMMKGWS8510
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CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION
CIN - U88100MH2023NPL413180
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31st MARCH, 2025

% in Hundreds

. As at As at
Fericuss NoteNoJ 346t March 2025 3st March 2024
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Other Non-Current Assets 2 100.00
Current Assets
Financial Assets
(a) Cash & Cash Equivalents 3 650.20 1,338.04
Other Current Assets 4 40.00 40.00
790.20 1,378.04
Total Assets 790.20 1,378.04
EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 5 1,000.00 1,000.00
Other Equity 6 (412.80) 163.04
587.20 1,163.04
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
|(a) Trade Payable 7
Micro and Small Enterprises - 150.00
Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 177.00 -
(b) Other Current Liabilities 8 26.00 65.00
203.00 215.00
Total Equity & Liabilities 790.20 1,378.04
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 1
As per our report of even date
For M. L. Sharma & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Regd No 109963W
Chartered Accountants N
W @\ )
S/ g
&)
{Vikash L Bajaj) Partner 7 % “9/’ NILAY RATHI ATUL K. KEDIA
Membership No : 104982 — Director Director
Place : Mumbai DIN : 08278468 DIN : 10637773

Date: (5 MAY 2075




CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION

CIN - UB8100MH2023NPL413180
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

Zin Hundreds

Particulars

Note No.

For the year Ended
31st March 2025

For the Period Ended
31st March 2024

Income
Grant or Donations

Total Income

Expenses

Programme Expenses
Education

Health Care
Environment
Disaster Relief
Others

Other Expenses
Total Expenses

Surplus/(Deficit) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

a) items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Income and

b) items that will be reclassified to Statement of Income and Expenditure
Total other Comprehensive Income

Total Comprehensive Income for the year

1,000.00

1,000.00

10

1

575.84

200.01

636.95

575.84

836.96

(575.84)

163.04

(575.84)

163.04

As per our report of even date
For M. L. Sharma & Co

Firm Regd No 109963W
Chartered Accountants
— -—'-?-_j-.\_\
LETIAN
o 7 )
i) NEN
= 2\
EKMUMBAI )g |
(Vikash L Bajaj) Partner ) /_g
Membership No : 104982 & e ()\\’/f
Place : Mumbai ‘\\\gz_t_?/

P05 MAY 205

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

NILAY RATHI
Director
DIN : 08278468

ATUL K. KEDIA
Director
DIN : 10637773




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION
CIN - U88100MH2023NPL413180

# in Hundreds

Other Equity
g Surplus from
. E Shar ,
Particulars qlcl:lz)it ala ¢ Income & Other Comprehensive Total Equity
Expenditure Income
Account
Balance at the beginning of the i i i
previous reporting period
Issued during the period 1,000.00 - 1,000.00
Add: Surplus for the Period - 163.04 163.04
Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income N i i
Balance at the end of the previous
reporting period i.e. 31st March, 2024 1,000.00 163.04 1,163.04
Add: Surplus for the Year -575.84 -575.84
Add/(Less): Other Comprehensive Income )
Balance at the end of the Current
reporting year i.e. 31st March, 2025 1,000.00 -412.80 587.20

As per our report of even date

For M. L. Sharma & Co

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Regd No 109963W

Chartered Accountants

@K*“" . X—

(Vikash L Bajaj) Partner NILAY RATHI ATUL K. KEDIA
Membership No : 104982 Director Director
Place : Mumbai DIN : 08278468 DIN: 10637773

Date: () 5 MAY.2075
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CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION
CIN - U88100MH2023NPL413180
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025
% in Hundreds

For the Year Ended | For the Period Ended

Farticulars 31st March 2025 |  31st March 2024
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Surplus for the year (575.84) 163.04
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses - -
Operating Profit before Working Capital changes (575.84) 163.04
| Adjustments for:
|(Decrease)/Increase in Other Liabilities (Current and Non-Current) (39.00) 65.00
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade Payable 27.00 150.00
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Assets ( Current and Non-Current) (100.00) (40.00)
Cash generated from operations (687.84) 338.04
Taxes Paid (net of refunds) - -
Net Cash flow generated from Operating Activities (A) (687.84) 338.04

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities

Net Cash flow generated from (used in) Investing Activity (B) - -

C. Cash flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of shares - 1,000.00
Net Cash flow generated from Financing Activity (C) - 1,000.00
Net increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C) (687.84)| 1,338.04
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the Year 1,338.04 -
Cash and Cash Equivalents at year End 650.20 1,338.04
Notes: - -

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7)

2) Components of Cash & Cash equivalents

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st
March 2025 March 2024

a. Cash & Cash Equivalents

Balance with Bank in Current Accounts 650,20 1,338.04

Total 650.20 1,338.04

As per our report of even date

For M. L. Sharma & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Firm Regd No 109963W
Chartered Accountants
{ L}

C}WM Mﬁ/@f
(Vikash L Bajaj) Partner . NILAY RATHI ATUL K. KEDIA
Membership No : 104982 Director Director
Place : Mumbai DIN : 08278468 DIN : 10637773
Date: () 5 MAY 2025 D)

&r  Firm Reg. No. “O
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CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION
CIN - U88100MH2023NPL413180
NOTES FORMING AN INTEGRAL PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
318T MARCH, 2025

NOTES ON ACCOUNT : 1

FOUNDATION OVERVIEW

CTIL Community Welfare Foundation was incorporated on November 2, 2023 under Section 8 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 18 of the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 and a wholly Owned
Subsidiary of Century Textiles and Industries Limited. The Company is a non-profit organization as a
section 8 Company focusing on charitable activities and CSR initiatives relating to any or all of the
objects as specified under its Memorandum of Association. The Company is also registered under
Section 12AB and 80G of the Income Tax Act,1961

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Basis of Accounting :
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS), including the rules notified under relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

(b) Current and Non Current Classification : ,
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based on Current/Non-Current
Classification

An Asset is treated as Current when it is-

- Expected to be realised or consumed in operating cycle,

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or Cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.

All other Assets are classified as non-current

A Liability is treated as Current when it is-

- Itis expected to be settled in operating cycle,

- [tis due to settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

(¢) Income Recognition :
Donations are recognised as income upon compliance with significant condition, if any, and where it is
reasonable to expect ultimate collection.
Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and
rate applicable.

(d) Property, Plant and Equipment & Depreciation: =
The Foundation does not have any Property, Plant & Equipment. s, LY




(e) Current Tax :
The Foundation has been incorporated on November 2, 2023 under Section 8 Company of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 18 of the Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014. The foundation is
registered under Section 12AB of the [ncome Tax Act,1961.

(f) Earnings Per Share :
Since the Company is section 8 company under the Companies Act 2013 and is prohibited from
distribution of profits, EPS details are not applicable.

(9) Provisions and Contingencies :
A Provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a
reliable estimate can be made. Provision are not discounted to its present value (except retirement
benefits) and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance
sheet date. These are revied at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
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CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION
CIN - U88100MH2023NPL413180
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

2 Other Non-Current Assets

Z in Hundreds

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Security Deposits - NSDL

100.00

Total

100.00

3 Cash & Cash Equivalents

Z in Hundreds

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Cash in Hand - -
Balance with Bank in Current Accounts 650.20 1,338.04
Total 650.20 1,338.04

4 Other Current Assets

Z in Hundreds

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
31st March, 2024

Advances recoverable in cash or kind 40.00 40.00
Total 40.00 40.00
oRhRM4
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CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION
CIN - U88100MH2023NPL413180
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

Equity Share Capital
Z in Hundreds

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Authorised
1,00,000 Equity shares of * 10 each 10,000.00 10,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid-up Equity Shares
10,000 Equity shares of * 10 each 1,000.00 1,000.00
Total 1,000.00 1,000.00

Reconciliation of the Shares Qutstanding at the beginning and at the end of the Reporting Period

Z in Hundreds

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025

No. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the year 10,000.00 1,000.00
Add: Issued during the year
Outstanding at the end of the Year 10,000.00 1,000.00

Z in Hundreds

Particulars As at 31st March, 2024

No. of Shares Amount
Equity Shares
At the beginning of the period
Add: Issued during the period 10,000.00 1,000.00
Outstanding at the end of the Period 10,000.00 1,000.00

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Z in Hundreds

Particulars As at 31st March, 2025

No. of Shares Amount
Century Textiles and Industries Limited (A Holding Company)* 10,000.00 1,000.00
Total 10,000.00 1,000.00

Kg | MuwMBA |s
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Z in Hundreds

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2024

No. of Shares Amount
Century Textiles and Industries Limited (A Holding Company)* 10,000.00 1,000.00
Total 10,000.00 1,000.00

* of the total shares of the Company , One shares are held by Nilay Rathi who are acting as the nominees on

behalf of Century Textiles and Industries Limited.

The Company has issued 10,000 Equity Shares of Face Value of Z 10 each at par to Century Textiles and
Industries Limited,a Holding Company in F.Y. 2023-24. Nominee is Nilay Rathi holding one share on behalf of

Century Textiles and Industries limited.

Details of shares held by Promoters / Promoters Group

Z in Hundreds

Promoters/ Promoters Group Name

As at 31st March, 2025

No. of Shares

% of Total Shares

Century Textiles and Industries Limited (A Holding Company)

100.00

100.00

Total

100.00

100.00

& in Hundreds

Promoters/ Promoters Group Name

As at 31st March, 2024

No. of Shares

% of Total Shares

Century Textiles and Industries Limited (A Holding Company) 100.00 100.00
Total 100.00 100.00
Other Equity
Z in Hundreds
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2025

31st March, 2024

A) Surplus from Statement of Income & Expenditure

Opening Balance 163.04 -

Add: Surplus/(Deficit) during the year (575.84) 163.04
(A) (412.80) 163.04

B) Other Comprehensive Income

Opening Balance - -

Add: Movement during the year - -
(B) - -

Total (A) + (B) @TZ80)| 163.04

——
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T Trade Payable

CTIL ComMm

CIN-t(

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATE!

2 in Hundreds

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2025

As at
3tst March, 2024

Micro & Small Enterprises - 150.00
Other than Micro & Small Enterprises 177.00 -
Total 177.00 150.00

Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Particulars

The Principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year

Interest due remainini unpaid to any supplier at the end of the year

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act , 2006, along with the amount
made to the Supplier beyond the appointed day during the year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyont
day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act , 2006.

The amount of Interest accured and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year

MSMED Act 2006

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years , until such date when th
above are actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under st

Note-Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro , Small and Meduim Enterprise Development Act
Status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on requests made
amounts for defayed payments to such vendors at the Balancsheet date .There are no delays in payment made to st
no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in respect of payment made during the year or on Batance brou

Particulars Unbilled payables Not Due Le
(i) MSME - -
(i) Others 177.00 -
(ili) Disputed Dues - MSME - -
(iv! Disputed Dues - Others - -
177.00 -
Particulars Unbilled payables Not Due Le
(i) MSME 150.00 -
(if) Others B -
(iii) Disputed Dues - MSME - -
(iv] Disputed Dues - Others - =
150.00 -
§ Other Current Liabilities
% in Hundreds
Particulars As at Asat
31st March, 2025 | 31st March, 2024
Statutory Dues 1.00 65.00
Other Payabies 25.00
" | Totat 26.00 65.00




9 Grant or Donations

CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION

CIN - U88100MH2023NPL413180
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

# in Hundreds

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2025

For the Period Ended
31st March, 2024

Grant or Donations received

1,000.00

Total

1,000.00

10 Education Expenses

Z in Hundreds

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2025

For the Period Ended
31st March, 2024

Education Expense - 200.01
Total - 200.01
11 Other Expenses

€ in Hundreds

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2025

For the Period Ended
31st March, 2024

Legal & Professional Expenses 306.27 400.00

Bank Charges 6.78 1.50

Annual Filling Fees 45.80 30.43

Professional Tax 25.00 25.00

Printing & Stationery - 30.02

Miscellaneous Expenses 3.19 -

Payment to Auditor

- As Audit Fees 177.00 150.00

- Other matters 11.80 -

Total 575.84 636.95
12 Related Party Disclosures

i} As per IND AS-24, the disclosures of transactions with related parties are given below.

Particulars Relationship

Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (Formerly Century Textiles and Industries Limited) |Holding Co

Nilay Rathi Director

Atul K Kedia Director

Ajay Kumar Gupta Director

2 in Hundreds

iiy |Nature of Transaction For the year ended 31st March, 2025 For the period ended 31st March, 2024

Enterprise Having

Enterprise Having

Significant HPyManadevial Significant Key Managerial Personnel
Personnel
Influence Influence
Donation Received
1) Century Textiles and Industries Limited - 1,000.00 -
Contribution To Capital
1) Century Textiles and Industries Limited 1,000.00 -
Directors
Nilay Rathi -
Atul K Kedia ) i
Ajay Kumar Gupta - - -
Total - 2,000.00 -
13 Key Ratios
Ratio Numerator Denominator 31st March, 2025
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities Times 3.40
Ratio Numerator Denominator 31st March 2024
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 6.41

Times

Other Ratios are either NIL or Not Applicable to the Company.




CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION
CIN - U88100MH2023NPL413180
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2025

14 Other Accompanying Notes
(1) As at 31st March 2025, the Company had no Contingent Liabilities / Contingent Assets.

(I} The Figures have been rounded off to the nearest hundreds of Rupees upto two decimal Places.

15 Other Statutory Information
(i The Company do not have any Benami Property, where any proceeding has been initiated Or pending against the company for holding any
) Benami Property.

(I) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(IN) The Company have not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies). including foreign entities (intermediaries) with
-the understanding that the intermediary shall:

() directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(V)

the company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsosver by or on behalf of the funding party
{ultimate beneficiaries) or

{b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The company have no such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
(VI) the year in the tax assessments under the income tax act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961).
(VIl) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period .
(VIIY) (viii) The Company has not been declared a Wilful Defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or government or any government authorities.
(IX)  The Company has compiled with the number of layers prescribed under Companies Act, 2013.

(XI) Note 1o 15 Forms an Integral Part of the Financial Statements.

As per our report of even date

For M. L. Sharma & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Firm Regd No 109963W

Chartered Accountants

S/
/ X—

(" 4 |
< L]

(Vikash L Bajaj) Partner NILAY RATHIi ATUL K. KEDIA

Membership No : 104982 Director Director

Place : Mumbai DIN : 08278468 DIN : 10637773

Date: (1 5 MAY 207




CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION
CENTURY BHAVAN WORL!I MUMBAI 400030

BANK RECONCILIATION AS ON 31st MAR 2025

1 STATE BANK OF INDIA Bank A/c

Balance as per Cash Book

Add:-  Cheques Issued but not yet
presented for payment.

Date Cheque No.

Less: - Cheques deposited but note yet
credited by Bank

Balance as per Bank Statement.

Total Bank Balance as on 31.03.2025

Amt. Amt.
65,020.32
Amt.
65,020.32
65,020.32
65,020.32




CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION
Principal Office: Century Bhavan, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-400 030.
Tel.:+91 22 2495 7000 Fax:+91 22 2430 9491
CIN : U88100MH2023NPL413180

5t May 2025
M/s. M.L. Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
1107, The Business Summit Bay,
Near WEH Metro Station, Opp. PVR Cinema,
Andheri East, Mumbai — 400093.

Dear Sir,

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting in the audit of CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION (‘the Company”) in
conjunction with your audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended
March 31, 2025, for the purpose of expressing an opinion as to whether the Company had, in all material
respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and the operating
effectiveness of such controls in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and deemed to be prescribed by the Central
Government in accordance with Section 143(10) of the 2013 Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we considered

necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves:

1. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate and effective internal financial controls
based on the Guidance Note on Audit of Intemal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the ICAI and the preparation and presentation of the financial statements as set out in the terms
of the audit engagement dated 12t July, 2024 and, in particular, the assertions to you on the internal
financial controls in accordance with the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

2. We have performed an evaluation and made an assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the company's internal financial controls and based on the controls stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI.

3. We have not used the procedures performed by you during the audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting as part of the basis for our assessment of the effectiveness of internal financial
controls.

4. Based on the assessment carried out by us and the evaluation of the results of the assessment, we
conclude that the Company has adequate internal financial controls system that was operating
effectively as at the March 31, 2025.

5. We, as part of management's evaluation, believe that there are no significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses in internal financial control.



There were no instances of fraud resulting in a material misstatement to the company's financial
statements and any other fraud that does not result in a material misstatement to the company's
financial statements but involves senior management or management or other employees who have
a significant role in the company's internal financial controls.

7 The control deficiencies identified in the previous engagement of audit of internal financial controls
and communicated to the Company and those charged with governance have been remediated.

8  There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning non-compliance with or
deficiencies in financial reporting practices.

9. We have provided you with:

> All information, such as records and documentation, and other matters that are relevant to your
assessment of internal financial controls;

» Additional information that you have requested from us; and

» Unrestricted access to those within the entity.

» There are no other subsidiary companies, jointly controlled companies and associate companies
of the company to whom reporting under Section 143(3)(i) is applicable and whose auditors have
not issued their report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act.

10. There are no changes in the interal financial controls system from March 31, 2025 till the date of
this representation letter.
For CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE
) FOUNDATION
4;,"-”-' S N\ j}iﬂL .
(=/ ' <
(- B A
. : \¢ A : :
Place : Mumbai NG Nilay Rathi

Date ; 05.05.2025

Director
DIN No. 08278468



CTIL COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION
Principal Office: Century Bhavan, Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai-400 030
Tel.:+91 22 2495 7000 Fax:+91 22 2430 9491 .
CIN : U88100MH2023NPL413180

5t May 2025
M/s. M.L. Sharma & Co.
Chartered Accountants
1107, The Summit Business Bay,
Behind Guru Nanak Petrol Pump,
Off Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East)
Mumbai - 400 093

Dear Sir,
Re: Audit for the year ended March 31, 2025

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of Financial Statements of CTIL
COMMUNITY WELFARE FOUNDATION for the year ended March 31, 2025. Financial Statements
comprise of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Income & Expenditure,
Statement of change in Equity & Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

We acknowledge our responsibility for matters stated in section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013
(the “Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give true and fair view
of the financial position and financial performance (Surplus) of the company in accordance with the
requirements of the Act and recognized accounting policies and practices generally accepted in
India, including the applicable accounting standards and for making accurate representations to
you. Our responsibility includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities, selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and design,
implementation and maintenance of internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

We acknowledge that the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Accounting
Standards notified under the Act.

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements for
the year ended March 31, 2025, for the purpose of expressing your opinion as to whether the
financial statements of the company are prepared and presented in accordance with the Accounting
Standards notified under Section 133 of the Act and generally accepted accounting principles.

We also acknowledge our responsibility for the completeness of information provided to you.



We are also responsible for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered
necessary for the preparation of the financial statements. The Board of Director of the company
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement , whether due to fraud or error, which has been used for the purpose of preparation
of the financial statements by us. As aforesaid, our responsibility includes making accurate
representations to you.

Further, we acknowledge that we have provided you with all relevant information and access as
agreed in the terms of the audit engagement and that all transactions have been recorded and are
reflected in the Financial Statements.

Classification of items in the Balance Sheet as current and non-current is on the basis specified in
the General Instruction for Preparation of Balance Sheet in Schedule 11! of 'the Act'. The Company
has determined the normal operating cycle to be 12 months.

We hereby, confirm to the best of our knowledge and belief, the following representations:

1. That the activities of the Company are in accordance with the objects clause of
Memorandum of Association of the Company.

2. We have made available to you all books of account and supporting documentation and all
minutes of meetings of shareholders and the board of directors.

3. The financial statements are free of material misstatements, including omissions.

4. The company has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that could have a
material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance. There has been
no noncompliance with requirements of regulatory authorities that could have a material
effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance.

5. The accounting policies which are material or critical in determining the results of operations
for the year or financial position are set out in the financial statements and are consistent
with those adopted in the financial statements for the previous year. The financial
statements are prepared on an accrual basis.

6. We confirm the completeness of the information provided regarding the identification of
related parties. The identity of, and balances and transactions with, related parties have
been properly recorded and, when appropriate, adequately disclosed in the financial
statements.

7. Atthe balance sheet date, there were no outstanding commitments for capital expenditure.



8.

9.

That the Company has no contingent liability except as disclosed in the notes to accounts
to final accounts of the Company. We further stated that the company did not have any
pending litigation which would impact on its financial position.

There have been no events subsequent to year end which require adjustment of or
Disclosure in the financial statements.

We further confirm that

1.

2.

10.

That no expenses of personal nature have been charged to revenue account.

That the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Hence, the provisions of
section 73 to 76 and any other relevant provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules
framed there under are not applicable to the Company.

The company is registered as a section 8 company under the companies Act, 2013 and not
carrying out any Business activity accordingly the clause in respect of maintenance of cost
records in relation to business/activities carried on by the Company, under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the company.

The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues such as income-tax, goods
and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and
there are no undisputed statutory liabilities outstanding for more than six months as on 31st
March, 2025.

There are No disputed statutory liabilities of the Company which are outstanding as on 31st
March,2025.

The Company has neither taken any loans nor has dues payable to financial institutions or
bank or debenture holders during the year.

The company has neither raised any money by way of IPO or FPO (Including debt
instruments) nor obtained any term loan during the year.

The company has complied with all the statutory requirements as prescribed under various
Acts, by-laws etc. to the best of our knowledge. We further confirm that we have
implemented the accounting and internal control systems that are designed to prevent and
detect fraud and error. That no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

The list of the related parties is attached herewith and the transaction with such parties
are in compliance with section 177 & 188 of the companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable
and the same has been disclosed in the financial statements as per the requirement of the
Accounting Standards issued by the ICAI

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with the directors or persons
connected with them.



1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

That no fraud on or by the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

We had physically verified the Cash on hand on 31.03.2025 * NIL (" in Hundred) and found
the same as correct and in agreement with the Cash Book.

The total Trade Receivables Including Deposits, Advances & Claims on 31t March, 2025
were 40 (" in Hundreds) and the entire amount is considered Good by Management.

That Company has not granted any Loans and Advances to Promoters, Directors, KMPs
and the related parties, either severally or jointly with any person.

That Company has no Capital Work-in-Process (CWIP)

That Company has no Intangible Assets under Development.

That Company has not acquired any Benami Property.

That Company is not a wilful defaulter.

That Company has no relationship with any of the Struck off Companies.

That Company has Registered charges/satisfaction with MCA with the Specific time given.

That Company has complied with the two Layers of Companies as per section 2(87) of the
Companies Act, 2013.

That Company has disclosed all income.

Thanking you,

Yours faithfully,

For CTIL Community Welfare Foundation.

A / /;,’; 3 :"-“Q_\_
(. J.I "\ ; I‘l, \I
[[=1 <=

Nilay Rathi \2\
Director
DIN No. 08278468



12th Floor, The Ruby

SRBC&COLLP 35 Senapati Bapa Marg

v Dadar (West)
Chartered Accountants Mumbai - 400 028, india

Tel : +91 22 6819 8000
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Ekamaya Properties Private Limited (“the Company"),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in

Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act’™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Iindia together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

SR BT &COLLP, aLimited Liability Partnership with LLP |dentity No, AAB-4318
-Regd. Of_fice : 22, Camac Street; Block ‘B’, 3rd Floor, Kolkata-700.016
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Chartered Accountants

Ekamaya Properties Private Limited Page 2 of 9

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

ated safequards.
C&Cp
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

@
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We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 30, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(qg).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report.

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries"”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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vi.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software (refer Note 27 to the financial statements).
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

“ @;ﬁ 2

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWD8932

Mumbai

April 30, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading "“Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date of Ekamaya Properties Private Limited

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

vi.

vii.

According to information and explanations given by the Management, the Company did not have
any Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets, hence sub clause (a) regarding
maintenance of proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Properly. Plant and Equipment: and intangibles assets: (b) regarding procedure of physical
verification by management during the year and any material discrepancies noticed on such
verification:(c) regarding title deeds of immoveable properties classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment are being held in the name of the Company; and (d) regarding the valuation to its
Property. Plant and Equipment (Including Right of use assets) or intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2025 are not applicable; (a)(A) The Company has not capitalized any tangible
asset in the books of the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)}a)(A)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable
and the coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate and no discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical
verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3¢ii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)a), (¢), (d), (e) and (f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products / services of the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of
customs, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and
service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(¢) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares / fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(@) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by the cost auditor or secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are
not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of
the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.
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(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a core investment company as defined by the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other companies part of the group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
(xviXd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash loss during the current year amounting to INR 9.41 lakhs.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 25 to the Ind AS financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWD8932

Mumbai
April 30, 2025
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements of
Ekamaya Properties Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (““the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Ekamaya
Properties Private Limited (“the Company’) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI")].
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note')
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’'s assets that could have a material effect
the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements |

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

(e

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWD8932

Mumbai
April 30, 2025



Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at
Note No. March 31, 2025
| ASSETS
NON CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Capital Work in Progress 3 13.31
(b) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 4 0.10
(c) Advance tax (Net of provision) 5 0.95
SUB-TOTAL 14.36
CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories 6 70,068.99
(b) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,033.62
(c) Other current assets 8 174.46
SUB-TOTAL 71,277.07
TOTAL 71,291.43
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 9 1.00
(b) Other equity 10 9.41)
SUB-TOTAL (8.41)
LIABILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11(a) 24,497.18
24,497.18
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 11(b) 6,323.50
(i) Trade payables 12
1)  Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 57.66
2) Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 40,164.91
(iiiy Other Financial liabilities 13 163.93
(b) Other current liabilities 14 102.66
SUB-TOTAL 46,802.66
TOTAL 71,291.43
Material accounting policies 2A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003 Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC426643
PR 0@
~L | \ !
per Ravi Bansal Gauray Jain Ankit Agarwal
Partner Director | Director
Membership No: 049365 DIN No’0b196934 DIN No: 09199933
Place: Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

Date: April 30, 2025

&

Date: April 30, 2025



Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Rs. in lakhs)

Period ended March 31,

Particulars Note No. 2025
I INCOME -
i EXPENSES
(a) Finance costs 15 -
(b) Other expenses 16 9.41
Total Expenses 9.41
Ml Loss before tax (i- 1) (9.41)
IV Tax Expense 17 -
V Loss for the period (HI - IV) (9.41)
Vi Other Comprehensive income -
VIl Total comprehensive loss (V + Vi) (9.41)
Vil Eamings per equity share: (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)
(1) Basic earnings per share 18 (94.10)
(2) Diluted eamings per share (94.10)

Material accounting policies 2A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behaif of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003 CIN: U68100MH2024PTC426643

(A0 e
Gaurav Jﬁl\? / Ankif Agarwal
Director \ Director

DIN No: 091 QQQ DIN No: 09199933
Place : Mu}QB Place : Mumbai

Date: April 3¢ 2025 Date: April 30, 2025

o

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025




Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss before tax

Working capital adjustment

Inventories

Other financial asset
Other assets

Trade payables

Other current liabilities

Less: Tax paid -

NET CASH FLOW USED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES - (A)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including CWIP

NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES - (B)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Proceeds from short term borrowings
Interest paid
Proceeds from issue of share capital

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (C)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer note 7)

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A

(Rs. in lakhs)

Period ended March 31,
2025

(9.41)

(9.41)

(68,645.54)

(0.10)

(174.46)
40,222.57

102.66

(28,494.87)

(0.95)

(28,505.23)

(13.31)

(13.39)

23,370.00
6,323.50

(142.34)
1.00

29,552.16

1,033.62

1,033.62

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC426643

by

Gaurav Ja!i\\:\ AnkitAgarwal

Director | Director

DIN No: 09199934 DIN No: 09199933
Place : Mu \tﬂai Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025 Date: April 30, 2025




Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Rs in lakhs)

Particulars Equity share capital Other equity Total equity
(Retained earnings)
Number of shares Amount Amount

As at June 06, 2024 - - - -
Issue of equity shares 10,000 1.00 1.00
Loss for the period - - (9.41) (9.41)
As at March 31, 2025 10,000 1.00 (9.41) (8.41)

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

0pee

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC426643

.l'f. .

&) ,;\\4
\%I,

Gaurav'Jain

Director \,,

DIN No: 09199934

Place : Mumbai

Dateﬁril 30, 2025

Ankit Agarwal
Director

DiN No: 09199933
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025




Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate information

Ekamaya Properties Private Limited (“the Company”) (CIN. U68100MH2024PTC426643), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Birla Estates Private Limited, is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated on June 86,
2024 under the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, applicable in India. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at Birla Aurora, Level 8, Dr Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400030. The Company is
principally engaged in the business of Real Estate.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of Directors on
April 30, 2025.

2A. Material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and presentation requirement of division Il of Schedule Ill to Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant
schedule Iil) as applicable to financial statement.

The Company is newly incorporated entity and has adopted Ind AS from date of incorporation. The financial
statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial asset and liability which
have been measured at fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Rs. (%) and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An

asset is treated as current when it is:

¢ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

¢ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

o ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

o ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the
time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

The normal operating cycle of the Company depends on signing of agreement, size of the project, phasing of the
project, type of development, project complexities, approvals needed and realisation of project into cash and cash
equivalents and range from 3 to 7 years. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities have been classified
into current and non-current based on operating cycle of respective projects. All other assets and liabilities have
been classified into current and non-current based on a period of twelve months.




Ekamaya Properties Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

2.3 Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, investments etc, at fair value at each balance
sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

° In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

° In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or
a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

° Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

° Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

2.4 Taxes
Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to
the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the
end of the reporting date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax is
recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be utilised.
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
in OCI.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

2.5 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with
an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above.

2.7 Foreign currencies
The Company'’s financial statements are presented in Rs, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at Rs spot rate at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
2.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are_recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
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Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments including derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company has not designated
any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.9 Inventories

Real estate activity

Direct expenditure relating to construction activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs)
during construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during
the construction period which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its
intended use is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on
specific identification to the construction and real estate activity. Cost incurred/ items purchased specifically for
projects are taken as consumed as and when incurred/ received.

2.10 Earnings per share:

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity
holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

2.11 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds
and is measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing. Borrowing
costs allocated to qualifying assets pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to
construction / development of the qualifying asset upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

2.12 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a
present obligation tha cognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resourc ill be required to
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settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the financial statements.

2.13 Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on profit or loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. The operating
segments have been identified on the basis of nature of product / services.

The Board of Directors of the Company is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) who is assessing the
financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic decisions.

2B. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities
affected in future periods. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in which
the results are known / materialised.

The following are critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the process of
applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount recognized in
the financial statements and/or key source of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax asset that can be recognized based upon the likely timing and the level of future
taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset on unused tax losses during the period since management
is of the view that currently there is no certainty that there will be taxable profit available against which these
losses will be utilized.
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NOTE : 3

NOTE : 4

(a)

NOTE: 5

NOTE : 6

(a)

NOTE : 7

(@)

NOTE : 8

(a)

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (CWIP) (Rs. in lakhs)
Particular As at
March 31, 2025

Opening balances -

Add: Additions during the period 13.31
Less: Capitalization / deductions during the period -
Closing balances 13.31
(i) Ageing schedul
Descripton Amount in CWIP for a period of Total
Less than 1-2years |2-3years More than
1 year 3years

As at 31 March 2025
Capital work in progress
Projects in progress 13.31 - - - 13.31

There are no projects whose complection is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan for the period ended March 31, 2025.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at
March 31, 2025

Financial asset at amorised cost

(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified)

Security Deposit 0.10
Total 0.10
ADVANCE TAX {(NET OF PROVISION) As at

March 31, 2025
Income tax receivable 0.95
Total 0.95
INVENTORIES

(At cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower)
As at
March 31, 2025

Construction work in progress (including land) 70,068.99
Total 70,068.99
M int y C uction Work in Progress

Particulars

Opening Construction work in Progress .
Add: Cost Incurred during the period

Land Cost 64,028.98
Finance Cost 1,423.46
Other Construction and Development Cost 4,616.55
Total Cost 70,068.99

Less: Cost related to real estate inventory recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss -
Less: Cost transferred to finished goods -

Closing Construction Work in Progress 70,068.99

Note:
(a) Borrowing cost inventoried during the period amounts to Rs. 1423.46 Lakhs

ASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(At amortised cost)
As at
March 31, 2025

Balances with banks

Current accounts 58.62
Cheques on Hand 975.00
Total 1,033.62

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

As at
March 31, 2025
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Advance to vendors 174.46
Total 174.46
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NOTE: ¢

(a)

(b)

(c)

(@

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised :

50,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

Issued, Subscribed and paid up :

10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

Terms / right attached to equity shares

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2025

5.00

5.00

1.00

1.00

The Company has only one class of equity share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board is subject to the approval of
shareholders except in case of interim dividend. in the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after

distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period.

Particulars Opening Fresh Issue Closing

Equity shares with voting rights

Year ended 31 March 2025

No. of shares - 10,000 10,000
Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) - 1.00 1.00
(e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As at
March 31, 2025
Class of shares / Name of shareholder
Number of Percentage
shares held

Equity shares with voting rights

Birla Estates Private Limited 9,999 99.99%

Totat 9,999 99.99%
() The Company has not issued any equity shares as bonus or for consideration other than cash and has not bought back any shares during the period of five years

immediately preceding 31 March 2025.
(g) Details of shares held by promoters

Particular No. of shares | Change during | No. of shares % of % change

at the the period at the end of Total shares during the period
beginning of the period
the period

Year ended 31 March 2025

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Birla Estates Private Limited 'BEPL') -] 9.999 | 9,999 | 99.99%| 100.00%

Keyur Shah, as nominee of BEPL - 1] 1] 0.01%)] 100.00%

NOTE:10 OTHER EQUITY
As at

Retained eamings

Total
Nature and purpose of reserves

Retained eamings are the losses of the Company incurred till date by the Company

March 31, 2025

(9.41)

(9.41)
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NOTE : 11(a)

(@

NOTE : 11(b)

(@

NOTE : 12

v

(i)

NOTE : 13

NOTE : 14

BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT . (Rs. in lakhs)
(At amortised cost) As at

March 31, 2025
Unsecured
Loan from holding company including interest accrued (Rate of interest on loan as at 31.03.2025 :- 9.3% p.a) 24,497.18
(repayable from project surplus cash flow)
Total 24,497.18
BORROWINGS - CURRENT
(At amortised cost) As at

March 31, 2025
Unsecured
Working capital loan from holding company (Rate of interest on loan as at 31.03.2025:- 9.3% p.a) 6,323.50
(repayable on demand)
Total 6,323.50

TRADE PAYABLES- CURRENT

{At amortised cost) As at
March 31, 2025

Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises 57.66
Trade payable - Other than micro and small enterprises 40,164.91
Total 40,222.57
- Related parties (Refer Note 19) -

- Others 40,222.57
Notes

The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with
the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act. There are no amounts paid / payable towards interest / principal under the MSMED.

Trade payables ageing schedule (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Qutstanding for the following periods from the invoice date
Less than 1-2 years 2-3years More Provision Total
1 year than for

3years expenses

As at 31 March 2025

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 57.66 - - - - 57.66
enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 40,158.97 - - - 5.94 40,164.91
enterprises and small enterprises

Total 40,216.63 - - - 5.94 40,222.57

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(At amortised cost) As at
March 31, 2025

Interest accured on borrowings (refer note 19) 1563.93
Total 153.93
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at
March 31, 2025
Statutory dues
- Taxes payable (other than income taxes) . 102.66

102.66

Total
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NOTE : 15

NOTE : 16

NOTE : 17

a)

b)

c)

NOTE : 18

(Rs. in lakhs)

FINANCE COST Period ended March 31,
2025
Interest on borrowings 1,423.46
Less: Finance costs inventoried (1,423.46)
Total -
OTHER EXPENSES
Period ended March 31,
2025
In Rs.
Payment to auditors (refer note A below) 6.49
Marketing expense 2.66
Miscellaneous expenses 0.26
Total 9.41
Note (A) Payment to auditors
Statutory audit fees 2.36
Certification and other fees o 4.13
6.49
INCOME TAX
Period ended March 31,
2025
TYax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax -
Deferred tax -
Net tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss -
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income -
Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit muitiplied by Company's tax rate:
Loss before tax (9.41)
Income tax expense caiculated at 25.17% . 2.37
Effect of deferred tax asset not recognized on tax losses (2.37)

income tax expense recognised In profit or loss

Note: The tax rate used for above tax reconciliation for 31 March 2025 is 25.17%

Deferred tax asset have not been recognised in respect of these business losses as It Is not probabile that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future
against which net deffered asset can be utilised and there are no other tax planning opportunity or other evidence of recoverability in the near future.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (FPS)

Period ended March 31,

2025
Loss for the period 9.41)
Weighted average number of equity share outstanding 10,000

Basic and diluted eamings per share (Rs.) (94.10)
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Note 19: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Relationships:
(a) Where the control exists:

Uitimate Holding Company
Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly known as Century Textiles and Industries Limited)

Holding Company:
Birla Estates Private Limited

(b) Key management personnel/directors

Director
Gaurav Jain
Ankit Agarwal
(Rs. in lakhs)
Name of the related party Nature of transaction Period Ended
31 March 2025
Loans taken 29,693.50
Birla Estates Private Limited Interest expense on loans taken 1,423.46
Investment in share capital 1.00
Name of the related party Balances outstanding with Related Parties As at
31 March 2025
Birla Estates Private Limited Loans taken 29,693.50
Interest payable ( disclosed as loan ) 1,127.18
Interest payable 153.93

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The loans from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The non current
borrowings are generally repayable after period of 5 years from project surplus at interest rates of 9.3% per annum. Outstanding
balances at the period-end are unsecured and settiement occurs in cash. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through
examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

NOTE 20: CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particular As at
31 March 2025

Capital commitments
Estimated amount of contract remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
{Net of advance) 12.00

There are no amount of claims against the Company that are not acknowledged as debts or guarantees. There is no contingent liability
as of 31 March 2025 .

NOTE 21 : SEGMENT REPORTING

Based on the "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Board of Directors evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators of business, the segments in which the
Company operates. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development which the Management and CODM
recognise as the sole business segment. Hence disclosure of segment- wise information is not required and accordingly not provided.

Note 22: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and ail other equity reserves attributabie to
the holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

Since equity is negative as at March 31, 2025, debt equity ratio is not computed.
Note 23: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and trade payables. The Company’s principal financial assets include
cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of
these risks. The Company’s senior management provides assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company’s
policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised
below.

ok is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or cusig
& there is no trade receivable during the period, the company is not exposed to credit risk.
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B. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises of three types of risks — interest rate risk,
foreign currency risk and equity price risk.

(l) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fl b of ch in foreign exchange rates. The pany's exposure to the risk of changes in
foreign exchange rates relates primarily to operating activity (when or i in foreign currency)

Company currently does not have any foreign currency exposure.

() Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fincacial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. As the company doesnot have any fioating interest
rate borrowing or deposit, it is not exposed to interest rate risk.

(i) Equity Price Risk
The Company is not exposed to equity price risk which arise from investment measured at fairvalue through profit and loss as the company holds no such investment.

C. Liquidity risk

(i) Liquidity risk management
The Company manages liquidity risk by and actual cash flows on daily, monthly and yearly basis. The Company ensures that there is a free credit limit available at the
start of the year which is sufficient for repayments gemng due In the ensuing year.

(/i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The foliowing tables detail the Company's maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financia! fiabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total
Long term borrowings, including interest accrued - - - - 24,497.18 24,497.18
Short term borrowings
Working capital loan 6,323.50 - - . - 6,323.50
Trade Payables
-Trade payables - micro, small & medium enterprises - 57.86 - 57.68
-Trade payables - other than micro, small & medium enterprises - 40,164.91 - - 40,164.91
©Other financiat liabities
-interest accrued on short term borrowing - 153.93 - 163.93
Total 6,323.50 57.66 40,318.84 - 24,497.18 71,197.18
(iii) Maturities of financial assets
The following table details the C 'S exp maturity for its derivative fi ial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undi ities of the ial assels including interest that
will be eamed on those assets. The of inft ion on i ial assets is y in order to the Company's liquidity risk as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and
fiability basis.
(Rs. in lakhs,
As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 310 12 months 1-5 years > 5 years Total
months
Other financial assets
-Security deposit - - - 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,033.62 - -
Total - . 1,033.62 - 0.10 -
Note 24: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortized cost
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025
Ca d value
Financial asset {amortized cost)
Other financial assets
-Security deposit 0.10 0.10
Cagh and cash equivalems 1,033.62 1,033.62
|Total 1,033.72 1.033.72 |
F habilities cost)
Long term borrowings, including interest accrued 24,497.18 24,497.18
Short term borrowings
-working capital loan 6,323.50 6,323.50
Trade payables
-Trade payablas - micro, small & medium enterprises 57.668 57.66
-Trade payables - other than micro, smat! & medium enterprises 40,164.91 40,164.91
Other financial liabities
-interest accrued on short term borrowinsi 153.93 153.93
otal 71.197.18 71.197.18
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Note 25: Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-25* Remarks
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 1.52
Debt equity ratio Total debt Shareholder's Equity - Refer note (iii) below

Debt service coverage ratio

Return on equity ratio
Inventory turnover ratio

Trade receivable turnover ratio
Trade payable turnover ratio

Earnings for debt service = Net profit
after tax + non cash operating expense

Net profit after taxes

Cost of goods sold

Net sales = Gross sales - sales return
Net purchases = Gross purchases -

Debt service= Interest payment + - Refer note (iii) below

principal repayments

111.89% -
- Refer note (i) below
- Refer note (i) below
- Refer note (i) below

Total shareholder’s equity
Average Inventory
Average trade receivable
Average trade payables

purchase return
Net sales = Total sales - sales return Working capital = Current assets — -

Current fiabilities

Net capital turnover ratio Refer note (i) below

Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales = Total sales - sales return - Refer note (i) below
Return on capital employed Earnings before interest and taxes Capital employed = Net worth + Total (0.03%) -

debt
Return on investment Interest {finance income) Investment - Refer note |(ii} below

Notes

(i) Since the company is not generating any revenue and profits during the current period, hence the ratios are not computed.

(i) The Company does not have investment and interest income, hence the ratio is not computed.

(iii) The Company does not have any business and no debt is required to be serviced during the period and accordingly debt equity ratio and debt service
coverage ratio are not applicable to the Company.

*This is the first year of incorporation of the Company, hence ratio of comparative period cannot be provided.

Note 26: Other Statutory Information

0 No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i)  The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off

(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(iv)  The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shail:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
@) Beneficiaries) or
(b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi)  The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded
in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Uitimate
@ Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961
(viil)  The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.
Note 27:
The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data for users
with certain privileged access rights to the SAP HANA application and/or the underlying HANA database. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with was noted in respect of other software. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Note 28:

The Company has been incorporated on 6 June 2024 and hence pursuant to the provisions of section 2(41) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 40 of the
Companies (Incorporation) Rule 2014, first financial statement shall commence from the date of incorporation i.e 6 June 2024 and ends on 31 March 2025, both
days inclusive. Accordingly, these financials present first period of operation for the company and hence there are no comparative numbers which are required to
be disclosed in the financial statement.

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Tarusa Properties Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tarusa Properties Private Limited (“the Company"), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in

Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics' issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safequards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(€))

()

©

(D

()

®

@

()

0]

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 30, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report.

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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Vi.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software (refer Note 21 to the financial statements).
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWF3287

Mumbai

April 30, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date of Tarusa Properties Private Limited

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

vi.

vii.

According to information and explanations given by the Management, the Company did not have
any Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets, hence sub clause (a) regarding
maintenance of proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Properly. Plant and Equipment: and intangibles assets: (b) regarding procedure of physical
verification by management during the year and any material discrepancies noticed on such
verification:(c) regarding title deeds of immoveable properties classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment are being held in the name of the Company; and (d) regarding the valuation to its
Property. Plant and Equipment (Including Right of use assets) or intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2025 are not applicable; (a)(A) The Company has not capitalized any tangible
asset in the books of the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(A)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company does not have inventories and accordingly, the requirement to report under
clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company..

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a), (¢), (d), (&) and (f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products / services of the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, income-tax, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and
service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares / fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by the cost auditor or secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are
not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of
the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.
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Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

xviii.

Xix.

XX.

(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a core investment company as defined by the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other companies part of the group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash loss during the current year amounting to INR 0.65 lakhs.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 19 to the Ind AS financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Sd/-

Per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWF3287

Mumbai
April 30, 2025
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements of
Tarusa Properties Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Tarusa
Properties Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company'’s policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWF3287

Mumbai
April 30, 2025



Tarusa Properties Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

(a)

(@)
(b)

()
(b)

(b)

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets
SUB-TOTAL

CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets
SUB-TOTAL

TOTAL
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Equity share capital
Other equity
SUB-TOTAL

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
1) Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
2)  Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Other current liabilities

SUB-TOTAL
TOTAL

Material accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

(Rs. in lakhs)
Note No. As at
March 31, 2025

3 0.10
0.10
4 0.65
5 0.19
0.84
0.94
6 1.00
7 (0.65)
0.35
8
0.54
9 0.05
0.59
0.94
2A

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Tarusa Properties Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC429852

Sd/- Sd/-
Gaurav Jain Sandeep Patwa
Director Director

DIN No: 09199934
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

DIN No: 10639835
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025



Tarusa Properties Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

Vi

\

Vil

INCOME

EXPENSES

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Loss before tax (I - 1)

Tax Expense

Loss for the period (Il - IV)

Other Comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss (V + VI)

Earnings per equity share: (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)
(1) Basic earnings per share

(2) Diluted earnings per share

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Note No.

10

11

12

2A

(Rs. in lakhs)

Period ended
March 31, 2025

0.65
0.65

(0.65)

0.65

0.65

(6.50)
(6.50)

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Tarusa Properties Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC429852

Sd/-

Gaurav Jain
Director

DIN No: 09199934
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

Sd/-

Sandeep Patwa
Director

DIN No: 10639835
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025



Tarusa Properties Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Rs in lakhs)
Other equity
Particulars Equity share capital (Retained
earnings) Total equity
Number of shares Amount Amount
As at July 31, 2024 - - - -
Issue of equity shares 10,000 1.00 - 1.00
Loss for the period - - (0.65) (0.65)
As at March 31, 2025 10,000 1.00 (0.65) 0.35

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC& COLLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

Tarusa Properties Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC429852

Sd/- Sd/-
per Ravi Bansal Gaurav Jain
Partner Director

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

DIN No: 09199934
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Sd/-
Sandeep Patwa
Director

DIN No: 10639835
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025




Tarusa Properties Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs)

Period ended
March 31, 2025

A. CASHFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss before tax (0.65)

(0.65)

Working capital adjustment

Other financial asset (0.10)
Other assets (0.19)
Trade payables 0.54
Other current liabilities 0.05

0.30

Less: Tax paid -

NET CASH FLOW USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES - (A) (0.35)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES - (B) -

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :

Proceeds from issue of share capital 1.00
NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (C) 1.00
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (A+B+C) 0.65

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer note 4) 0.65

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Tarusa Properties Private Limited

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003 CIN: U68100MH2024PTC429852

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

Sd/-

Gaurav Jain
Director

DIN No: 09199934
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

Sdi-
Sandeep Patwa
Director

DIN No: 10639835
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025



Tarusa Properties Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate information

Tarusa Properties Private Limited (“the Company”) (CIN. U68100MH2024PTC429852), a wholly owned subsidiary of Birla
Estates Private Limited, is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated on July 31, 2024 under the provisions
of the Companies Act 2013, applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Birla Aurora, Level 8, Dr
Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400030. The Company is principally engaged in the business of Real Estate.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of Directors on April 30,
2025.

2A. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirement of division Il of Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant schedule Ill) as applicable to financial
statement.

The Company is newly incorporated entity and has adopted Ind AS from date of incorporation. The financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial asset and liability which have been measured at
fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Rs. (%) and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

e  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e [tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e [tis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e [tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

The normal operating cycle of the Company depends on signing of agreement, size of the project, phasing of the project,
type of development, project complexities, approvals needed and realisation of project into cash and cash equivalents and
range from 3 to 7 years. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current
based on operating cycle of respective projects. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-
current based on a period of twelve months.

2.3 Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, investments etc, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
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. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

2.4 Taxes

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the end of the reporting
date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

sets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

eferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

2.5 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above.

2.7 Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Rs, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at Rs spot rate at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

2.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments including derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.9 Earnings per share:
Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

2.10 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

2B. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known /
materialised.

The following are critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount recognized in the financial
statements and/or key source of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax asset that can be recognized based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset on unused tax losses during the period since management is of the
view that currently there is no certainty that there will be taxable profit available against which these losses will be utilized.
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NOTE : 3 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial asset at amorised cost
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified)
(@)  Security Deposit
Total

NOTE : 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(At amortised cost)
(a) Balances with banks
- Current accounts
Total
NOTE: 5

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
(@) Advance to vendor
Total

NOTE : 6 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(@) Authorised :

50,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

(b) Issued, Subscribed and paid up :

10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

() Terms/right attached to equity shares

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2025

0.10
0.10

As at
March 31, 2025

0.65

0.65

As at
March 31, 2025

0.19
0.19

As at
March 31, 2025

5.00

5.00

1.00
1.00

The Company has only one class of equity share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board is subject to the approval of
shareholders except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

(d) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period.

Particulars Opening Fresh Issue Closing
Equity shares with voting rights
period ended 31 March 2025
No. of shares N 10,000 10,000
Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) - 1.00 1.00
(e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As at

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

March 31, 2025

Number of Percentage
shares held
Equity shares with voting rights
Birla Estates Private Limited 9,999 99.99%
Total 9,999 99.99%

(f) The Company has not issued any equity shares as bonus or for consideration other than cash and has not bought back any shares during the period of five periods

immediately preceding 31 March 2025.

(g) Details of shares held by promoters

NOTE : 7

Retained earnings

Total
Nature and purpose of reserves

Retained earnings are the losses of the Company incurred till date by the Company

Particular No. of shares | Change during | No. of shares % of % change
at the the period at the end of Total shares during the period
beginning of the period
the period

period ended 31 March 2025

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Birla Estates Private Limited (BEPL') -] 9,999 | 9,999 | 99.99%] 100.00%
Keyur Shah, as nominee of BEPL - 1 1 0.01%| 100.00%

OTHER EQUITY
As at

March 31, 2025
(0.65)

(0.65)
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NOTE: 8

0]

(ii)

NOTE: 9

NOTE : 10

NOTE : 11

a)

b)
©)
d)

NOTE : 12

(Rs. in lakhs)
TRADE PAYABLES- CURRENT
(At amortised cost) As at
March 31, 2025

Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises -
Trade payable - Other than micro and small enterprises 0.54

Total 0.54

- Related parties (Refer Note 13) -
- Others 0.54

Notes
The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available
with the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act. There are no amounts paid / payable towards interest / principal under the MSMED.

Trade payables ageing schedule (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the invoice date

Less than 1-2 years 2-3years  More Provision Total

1year than for
3years expenses
As at 31 March 2025
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises - - - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises - - - 0.54 0.54
Total - - - 0.54 0.54
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
As at

Statutory dues
- Taxes payable (other than income taxes)

Total

OTHER EXPENSES

Miscellaneous expenses
Payment to auditors (refer note A below)
Total

Note (A) Payment to auditors (including GST)
Statutory audit fees

INCOME TAX

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax

Deferred tax
Net tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income

Amounts recognised directly in equity

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Loss before tax

Income tax (expense)/income calculated at 25.17%
Effect of deferred tax asset not recognized on tax losses
Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss

Note: The tax rate used for above tax reconciliation for 31 March 2025 is 25.17%

March 31, 2025
0.05

0.05

Period ended
March 31, 2025

0.06
0.59
0.65

0.59
0.59

Period ended
March 31, 2025

(0.65)
0.16
(0.16)

Deferred tax asset have not been recognised in respect of these business losses as it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future
against which net deffered asset can be utilised and there are no other tax planning opportunity or other evidence of recoverability in the near future.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Loss for the period
Weighted average number of equity share outstanding
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs.)

Note: During the period ended March 31, 2025, there is loss and hence there will be no dilution in case of losses.

Period ended
March 31, 2025

(0.65)
10,000
(6.50)
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Note 13: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Relationships:
(a) Where the control exists:

Ultimate Holding Company
Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly known as Century Textiles and Industries Limited)

Holding Company:
Birla Estates Private Limited

(b) Key management personnel/directors

Director
Gaurav Jain
Sandeep Patwa
(Rs. in lakhs)
Name of the related party Nature of transaction Period ended
March 31, 2025
Birla Estates Private Limited Investment in share capital 1.00
Name of the related party Balances outstanding with Related Parties As at
31 March 2025
Birla Estates Private Limited Share capital 1.00

NOTE 14: CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There are no amount of claims against the Company that are not acknowledged as debts or guarantees and no capital commitments. There is no
contingent liability or capital commitments as of 31 March 2025.

NOTE 15 : SEGMENT REPORTING

Based on the "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Board of Directors evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators of business, the segments in which the Company
operates. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development which the Management and CODM recognise as the sole
business segment. Hence disclosure of segment- wise information is not required and accordingly not provided.

Note 16: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the
holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company does not have any business and debt during the year and accordingly no capital management is required.

Note 17: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these
risks. The Company’s senior management provides assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies
and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company’s policies and risk objectives. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss.
Since there is no trade receivable during the period hence the company is not exposed to credit risk.

B. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market
risk comprises of three types of risks — interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk.

(i) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to operating activity (when revenue or expense
denominated in foreign currency)

Company currently does not have any foreign currency exposure.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fincacial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. As the company doesnot have any floating interest rate borrowing or deposit, it is not exposed to interest rate risk.

(iii) Equity Price Risk

The Company is not exposed to equity price risk which arise from investment measured at fairvalue through profit and loss as the company holds
no such investment.
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C. Liquidity risk
(i) Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows on daily, monthly and yearly basis. The Company ensures that there is a free credit limit available at
the start of the year which is sufficient for repayments getting due in the ensuing year.

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 3to 12 months 1-5years >5years Total
months
Trade Payables
-Trade payables - other than micro, small & medium enterprises - 0.54 - - 0.54
Total - 0.54 - - 0.54

(iii) Maturities of financial assets

The following table details the Company’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial
assets including interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company’s liquidity risk

management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 3to 12 months 1-5years >5years Total
months
Other financial assets
-Security deposit - - - 0.10 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents 0.65 - - 0.65
Total - 0.65 - 0.10 0.75
Note 18: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortized cost
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars

As at 31 March 2025

Carrying Value

Amortised value

Financial asset (amortized cost)
Other financial assets

-Security deposit 0.10 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents 0.65 0.65
Total 0.75 0.75
Financial liabilities (amortized cost)

Trade payables

-Trade payables - other than micro, small & medium enterprises 0.54 0.54

Total 0.54 0.54
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Note 19: Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-25* Remarks
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 1.42
Debt equity ratio Total debt Shareholder’s Equity - Refer note (iii) below

Debt service coverage ratio

Return on equity ratio
Inventory turnover ratio

Trade receivable turnover ratio
Trade payable turnover ratio

Earnings for debt service = Net profit
after tax + non cash operating expense
Net profit after taxes

Cost of goods sold

Net sales = Gross sales - sales return
Net purchases = Gross purchases -

Debt service= Interest
principal repayments
Total shareholder’s equity
Average Inventory
Average trade receivable
Average trade payables

payment +

- Refer note (i) below

(185.71%) -
- Refer note (i) below
- Refer note (i) below
- Refer note (i) below

Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio
Return on capital employed

Return on investment

purchase return

Net sales = Total sales - sales return Working capital = Current assets — -
Current liabilities

Net sales = Total sales - sales return - Refer note (i) below
Capital employed = Net worth + Total (185.71%) -

debt

Investment -

Refer note (i) below

Net profit
Earnings before interest and taxes

Interest (finance income) Refer note (ii) below

Notes

(i) Since the company is not generating any revenue and profits during the current period, hence the ratios are not computed.

(if) The Company does not have investment and interest income, hence the ratio is not computed.

(iii) The Company does not have any business and debt and accordingly debt equity ratio and debt service coverage ratio are not applicable to the Company.
*This is the first year of incorporation of the Company, hence ratio of comparative period cannot be provided.

Note 20: Other Statutory Information

(0]
(if)
(iii)
(iv)
W)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off
The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
@) Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
@ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) proyidq any guarantee, segurity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961
The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Note 21:

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same
has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data
for users with certain privileged access rights to the SAP HANA application and/or the underlying HANA database. Further no instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with was noted in respect of other software. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements
for record retention.

Note 22:

The Company has been incorporated on 31 July 2024 and hence pursuant to the provisions of section 2(41) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 40 of
the Companies (Incorporation) Rule 2014, first financial statement shall commence from the date of incorporation i.e 31 July 2024 and ends on 31 March
2025, both days inclusive. Accordingly, these financials present first year of operation for the Company and hence there are no comparative numbers which
are required to be disclosed in the financial statement.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Tarusa Properties Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC429852

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

Sd/-
Gaurav Jain
Director

DIN No: 09199934
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

Sd/-
Sandeep Patwa
Director

DIN No: 10639835
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Unnatam Properties Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Unnatam Properties Private Limited (“the Company’),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in

Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

SRBC&COLLP, a Limited Liability Partnership with LLP Identity No. AAB-4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street, Block 'B’, 3rd Floor. Kolkata-700 016
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
lated safequards.
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Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(@

()

©

()

(e

®

@

(h

®

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(qg).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 30, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)b) and
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report.

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
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vi.

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software (refer Note 20 to the financial statements).
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

R

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWG7663

Mumbai

April 30, 2025



SRBC&CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

Unnatam Properties Private Limited Page 5 of 9

Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date of Unnatam Properties Private Limited

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

iii.

vi.

vii.

According to information and explanations given by the Management, the Company did not have
any Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets, hence sub clause (a) regarding
maintenance of proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Properly. Plant and Equipment: and intangibles assets: (b) regarding procedure of physical
verification by management during the year and any material discrepancies noticed on such
verification:(c) regarding title deeds of immoveable properties classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment are being held in the name of the Company; and (d) regarding the valuation to its
Property. Plant and Equipment (Including Right of use assets) or intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2025 are not applicable; (a)(A) The Company has not capitalized any tangible
asset in the books of the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(A)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company does not have inventories and accordingly, the requirement to report under
clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company..

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii(a), (c), (d), () and (f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products / services of the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, income-tax, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
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viii.

xi.

Xii.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and
service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares / fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by the cost auditor or secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are
not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of
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(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a core investment company as defined by the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi}c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other companies part of the group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash loss during the current year amounting to INR 0.65 lakhs.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 18 to the Ind AS financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 324982

@dﬂ&
Per Ravi Bansal

Partner
Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWG7663

Mumbai

April 30, 2025
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements of
Unnatam Properties Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Unnatam
Properties Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
he financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

® Lol —
per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWG7663

Mumbai
April 30, 2025




Unnatam Properties Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

(a)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets
SUB-TOTAL

CURRENT ASSETS

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
SUB-TOTAL

TOTAL

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

Equity share capital

Other equity

SUB-TOTAL

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables

1) Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises

2)  Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises
Other current liabilities

SUB-TOTAL
TOTAL

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at
Note No. March 31, 2025

3 0.10
0.10
4 0.66
0.66
0.76
5 1.00
6 (0.83)
0.17
7
0.54
8 0.05
0.59
0.76
2A

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Unnatam Properties Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC430519

{

/’ilh
Gaurav Jain
Director
DIN No:/09199934
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

7

=
AnKit Aga/rwal

Director

DIN No: 09199933
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025




Unnatam Properties Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Rs. in lakhs)

Period ended

Particulars Note No. March 31, 2025
| INCOME =
Il EXPENSES
Other expenses 9 0.83
Total Expenses 0.83
Il Loss before tax (I - 1) (0.83)
IV Tax Expense 10 -
\") Loss for the period (lll - V) (0.83)

VI Other Comprehensive income -

VIl Total comprehensive loss (V + VI) (0.83)
VIl Earnings per equity share: (Face value of Rs. 10 per share) 11
(1)  Basic earnings per share (8.30)
(2) Diluted earnings per share (8.30)
Material accounting policies 2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC & COLLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Unnatam Properties Private Limited
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003 CIN: U68100MH2024PTC430519

( .

AL @v}"}

X ( \ /

Ay 7
per Ravi Bansal Gauray Jain Ankit Agarwa
Partner Director ) Director
Membership No: 049365 DIN No: 09199934 DIN No: 09199933
Place: Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

Date: April 30,2025 Date: April 30, 2025
.’//l




Unnatam Properties Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Rs in lakhs)

Other equity (Retained
Particulars Equity share capital earnings) Total equity
Number Amount Amount
As at August 12, 2024 - - - -
Issue of equity shares 10,000.00 1.00 - 1.00
Loss for the period - - (0.83) (0.83)
As at March 31, 2025 10,000.00 1.00 (0.83) 0.17

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

For SRBC & CO LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

per Ravi Bansal
Partner
Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Unnatam Properties Private Limited

CIN: U68100MH2024PTC430519

(A 61%
J ] 7/

Gaurav/Jain
Director |

DIN No: 0?199934
Place : Mumbai
Date: Apﬁl 30, 2025

P 4

An@:j{q
Director

DIN No: 09199933
Place : Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025




Unnatam Properties Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs)
Period ended
March 31, 2025

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss before tax (0.83)

(0.83)

Working capital adjustment:

Inventories .
Other financial asset (0.10)
Trade payables 0.54
Other current liabilities 0.05
0.49
Less: Tax paid -
NET CASH FLOW USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES - (A) (0.34)
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES - (B) -
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from issue of share capital 1.00
NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (C) 1.00
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (A+B+C) 0.66
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer note 4) 0.66

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Unnatam Properties Private Limited
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003 CIN: U68100MH2024PTC430519

r/’)’ — (ﬁ
\_/ UH )

s -
Gaurav Jain Ankit Agartval

PRy

per Ravi Bansal

Partner Lo | ML Director Director
Membership No: 049365 "3;\"“_%4\\ \_/n-?./ DIN No: 09199934 DIN No: 09199933
Place: Mumbai oS/ Place/: Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025 \\QW} Da{tga."'ApriI 30, 2025 Date: April 30, 2025
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... transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

Unnatam Properties Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate information

Unnatam Properties Private Limited (“the Company”) (CIN. U68100MH2024PTC430519), a wholly owned subsidiary of Birla
Estates Private Limited, is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated on August 12, 2024 under the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013, applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Birla Aurora,
Level 8, Dr Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400030. The Company is principally engaged in the business of Real Estate.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of Directors on April 30,
2025.

2A. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirement of division Il of Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant schedule I11) as applicable to financial
statement.

The Company is newly incorporated entity and has adopted Ind AS from date of incorporation. The financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial asset and liability which have been measured at
fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Rs. (%) and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

The normal operating cycle of the Company depends on signing of agreement, size of the project, phasing of the project,
type of development, project complexities, approvals needed and realisation of project into cash and cash equivalents and
range from 3 to 7 years. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current
based on operating cycle of respective projects. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-
current based on a period of twelve months.

2.3 Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, investments etc, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the

In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
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° In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

° Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

° Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

° Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
2.4 Taxes

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the end of the reporting
date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

sets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

eferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

2.5 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above.

2.7 Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Rs, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at Rs spot rate at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

2.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e  Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Debt instruments including derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.9 Earnings per share:
Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

2.10 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

2B. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known /
materialised.

The following are critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount recognized in the financial
statements and/or key source of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax asset that can be recognized based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset on unused tax losses during the period since management is of the
view that currently there is no certainty that there will be taxable profit available against which these losses will be utilized.
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NOTE : 3 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

OIHER PINANLIAL A99= 9

Financial asset at amorised cost

(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified)
(a) Security Deposit

Total

NOTE : 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(At amortised cost)

(a) Balances with banks
- Current accounts

Total

NOTE : 5 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Authorised :

50,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

(b) Issued, Subscribed and paid up :

10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

(c) Terms/ right attached to equity shares

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2025

0.10
0.10

As at
March 31, 2025

0.66

0.66

As at
March 31, 2025

5.00

5.00

l

1.00
1.00

The Company has only one class of equity share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board is subject to the approval of
shareholders except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

(d)  Reconciliation of the number of shares ding at the beg

ing and at the end of the period.

Particulars Opening Fresh Issue Closing
Equity shares with voting rights
Period ended 31 March 2025
No. of shares - 10,000 10,000
Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) - 1.00 1.00
(e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As at

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

March 31, 2025

Number of Percentage
shares held
Equity shares with voting rights
Birla Estates Private Limited 9,999 99.99%
Total 9,999 99.99%

(f) The Company has not issued any equity shares as bonus or for consideration other than cash and has no

preceding 31 March 2025.

(g) Details of shares held by promoters

t bought back any shares during the period of five years immediately

NOTE : 6

Retained earnings

Total
Nature and purpose of reserves

Retained earnings are the losses of the Company incurred till date by the Company

Particular No. of shares | Change during | No. of shares % of % change
at the the period at the end of Total shares during the period
beginning of the period
the period

Period ended 31 March 2025

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Birla Estates Private Limited (BEPL') -] 9,999 | 9,999 | 99.99%| 100.00%
Keyur Shah, as nominee of BEPL - 1] 1 0.01%] 100.00%

OTHER EQUITY
As at

March 31, 2025

(0.83)
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NOTE: 7

(i)

(ii)

NOTE : 8

NOTE: 9

NOTE : 10

NOTE : 11

TRADE PAYABLES (Rs. in lakhs)
(At amortised cost) As at

March 31, 2025

Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises -
Trade payable - Other than micro and small enterprises 0.54

Total 0.54

- Related parties (Refer Note 12) -
- Others 0.54

Notes
The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available with
the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act. There are no amounts paid / payable towards interest / principal under the MSMED.

Trade payables ageing schedule (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the invoice date
Less than 1-2 years 2-3years More Provision Total
1year than for

3years expenses

As at 31 March 2025
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - - = = -

enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises - - - - 0.54 0.54
Total - - - - 0.54 0.54

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at

March 31, 2025
Statutory dues
- Taxes payable (other than income taxes) 0.05
Total 0.05
OTHER EXPENSES

Period ended

March 31, 2025
Miscellaneous expenses 0.24
Payment to auditors (refer note A below) 0.59

Total 0.83

Note (A) Payment to auditors (including GST)

Statutory audit fees 0.59
0.59
INCOME TAX

Period ended
March 31, 2025

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current tax i
Deferred tax — e B
Net tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss =

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income -
Amounts recognised directly in equity -
Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Loss before tax (0.83)
Income tax (expense)/income calculated at 25.17% 0.21
Effect of deferred tax asset not recognized on tax losses (0.21)
Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss -

Note: The tax rate used for above tax reconciliation for 31 March 2025 is 25.17%

Deferred tax asset have not been recognised in respect of these business losses as it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future
against which net deffered asset can be utilised and there are no other tax planning opportunity or other evidence of recoverability in the near future.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Period ended
March 31, 2025

Loss for the period (0.83)
Weighted average number of equity share outstanding 10,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (8.30)

Note: During the period ended March 31, 2025, there is loss and hence there will be no dilution in case of losses.
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Note 12: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Relationships:
(a) Where the control exists:

Ultimate Holding Company
Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly known as Century Textiles and Industries Limited)

Holding Company:
Birla Estates Private Limited

(b) Key management personnel/directors

Director
Gaurav Jain
Ankit Agarwal
(Rs. in lakhs)
Name of the related party Nature of transaction Period ended
March 31, 2025
Birla Estates Private Limited Investment in share capital 1.00
Name of the related party Balances outstanding with Related Parties As at
March 31, 2025
Birla Estates Private Limited Share capital 1.00

NOTE 13: CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There are no amount of claims against the Company that are not acknowledged as debts or guarantees and no capital commitments. There is no
contingent liability or capital commitments as of 31 March 2025.

NOTE 14 : SEGMENT REPORTING

Based on the "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Board of Directors evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators of business, the segments in which the Company
operates. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development which the Management and CODM recognise as the sole
business segment. Hence disclosure of segment- wise information is not required and accordingly not provided.

Note 15: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the holders
of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

Since the Company does not have any business as at March 31, 2025 hence debt equity ratio is not computed.
Note 16: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Company’s senior management provides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company's policies and risk objectives. The Board
of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. Since
there is no trade receivable during the period hence the company is not exposed to credit risk.

B. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises of three types of risks — interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk.

(i) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to operating activity (when revenue or expense
denominated in foreign currency)

Company currently does not have any foreign currency exposure.

(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fincacial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
As the company doesnot have any floating interest rate borrowing or deposit, it is not exposed to interest rate risk.

(iii) Equity Price Risk
The Company is not exposed to equity price risk which arise from investment measured at fairvalue through profit and loss as the company holds
no such investment. .
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C. Liquidity risk
(i) Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows yearly basis. The Company ensures that there is a free credit limit available at the start of the year which is sufficient for

repayments getting due in the ensuing year.
(i) of fi 101 liabilith

The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at 31 March 2025

Trade Payables
-Trade payables - other than micro, small & medium enterprises

Total

On Demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1-5 years >5years Total
months
- 0.54 - - 0.54
- 0.54 - - 0.54

(i) Maturities of financial assets

The following table details the Company's expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that
will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company's liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and

liability basis

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at 31 March 2025

Carrying Value

Financial asset (amortized cost)
Other financial assets

Amortised value

Total

-Security deposit 0.10 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents 0.66 0.66
Total 0.76 0.76
Financial liabilities {amortized cost)

Trade payables
-Trade payables - other than micro, small & medium enterprises 0.54 0.54
0.54 0.54

As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 3to 12 months 1-5 years > 5years Total
months

Other financial assets

-Security deposit ] - - 0.10 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents 0.66 - - 0.66

Total - 0.66 - 0.10 0.76
Note 17: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortized cost
(Rs. in lakhs)
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Note 18: Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratio

Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-25* Remarks
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 142 =
Debt equity ratio Total debt Shareholder’s Equity - Refer note (iii) below
Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for debt service = Net profit Debt service= Interest payment + principal - Refer note (i) below
after tax + non cash operating expense repayments
Return on equity ratio Net profit after taxes Total shareholder’s equity (488.24%) -

Inventory turnover ratio
Trade receivable turnover ratio
Trade payable turnover ratio

Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio
Return on capital employed

Cost of goods sold

Net sales = Gross sales - sales return
Net purchases = Gross purchases -
purchase return

Net sales = Total sales - sales return

Net profit
Eamings before interest and taxes

Average Inventory
Average trade receivable
Average trade payables

Working capital = Current assets — Current
liabilities

Net sales = Total sales - sales return
Capital employed = Net worth + Total debt

- Refer note (i) below
- Refer note (i) below
- Refer note (i) below

(11.16) Refer note (i) below

- Refer note (i) below
(488.24%) -

Return on investment

Investment - _Refer note (ii) below

Interest (finance income)

Notes

(i) Since the company is not generating any revenue and profits during the current period, hence the ratios are not computed.

(if) The Company does not have investment and interest income, hence the ratio is not computed.

(iii) The Company does not have any business and debt and accordingly debt equity ratio and debt service coverage ratio are not applicable to the Company.
*This is the first year of incorporation of the Company, hence ratio of comparative period cannot be provided.

Note 19: Other Statutory Information

(i)
(i)
(iii)
(iv)

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules
made thereunder.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

v)
Intermediary shall:
(vi)
otherwise) that the Company shall:
(vii)
(viii)
Note 20:

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data for users with certain privileged access rights to
the SAP HANA application and/or the underlying HANA database. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of other software. Additionally,
the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Note 21:

The Company has been incorporated on 12 August 2024 and hence pursuant to the provisions of section 2(41) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 40 of the Companies
(Incorporation) Rule 2014, first financial statement shall commence from the date of incorporation i.e 12 August 2024 and ends on 31 March 2025, both days inclusive. Accordingly,
these financials present first year of operation for the Company and hence there are no comparative numbers which are required to be disclosed in the financial statement.

As per our report of even date
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Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003
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Partner
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Vypak Properties Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Vypak Properties Private Limited (“the Company"), which
comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in

Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its
foss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statementsin accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

S RBC&COLLP, aLimited Liability Partnership with.LLP Idéntity No. AAB-4318
Regd. Office : 22, Camac Street; Block ‘B', 3rd Fioor, Kolkata-700.016
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financiai Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, incfuding the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
refated safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 30, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report.

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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g

vi.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries"”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software (refer Note 25 to the financial statements).
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Ul

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWI1963

Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements"” of our report of even date of Vypak Properties Private Limited

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

According to information and explanations given by the Management, the Company did not have
any Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets, hence sub clause (a) regarding
maintenance of proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Properly. Plant and Equipment: and intangibles assets: (b) regarding procedure of physical
verification by management during the year and any material discrepancies noticed on such
verification:(¢) regarding title deeds of immoveable properties classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment are being held in the name of the Company; and (d) regarding the valuation to its
Property. Plant and Equipment (Including Right of use assets) or intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2025 are not applicable; (a)(A) The Company has not capitalized any tangible
asset in the books of the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(A)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable
and the coverage and procedure for such verification is appropriate and no discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were noticed on such physical
verification.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iiXb)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ili. (a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood

vi.

vii.

guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a), (¢), (d), (e) and (f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products / services of the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, duty of
customs, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
han six months from the date they became payable.
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and
service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(H The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares / fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by the cost auditor or secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

() As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are
not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of
the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.
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Xiv.

XV.

Xvi.

Xvii.

xviii.

Xix.

XX.

(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)Xb) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a core investment company as defined by the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other companies part of the group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
(xviXd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash loss during the current year amounting to INR 14.83 lakhs.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 23 to the Ind AS financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For SRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWI1963

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

=

Mumbai

April 30, 2025
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements of
Vypak Properties Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Vypak
Properties Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI'")].
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of.internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial

statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

P

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWI1963

Mumbai
April 30, 2025



Vypak Properties Private Limited

Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

(@)
(b)

(a)
(b)

@
(b)

(a)

(a)

(b)

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Work in Progress
Financial assets

(i) Other financial assets

SUB-TOTAL

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories

Financial assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
SUB-TOTAL

TOTAL
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity share capital
Other equity
SUB-TOTAL

LIABILITIES

NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(i) Trade payables

1)  Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises
2) Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iity Other Financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
SUB-TOTAL

TOTAL

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Note No.

9 (a)

9 (b)
10

1"
12

2A

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2025

20.50

20.60

36,418.88

60.77
36,479.65

36,500.25

1.00
(14.83)

(13.83)

23,420.24
23,420.24

476.21

3.97
12,650.11

12.23
51.32

13,093.84

36,500.25

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC &COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Vypak Properties Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC424443

Keyur Shah
Director

DIN No: 00332145
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

6\ J\;\/)

e

Director |
4
DIN No: 09199934
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025



Vypak Properties Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31, 2025
(Rs. in lakhs)

) Period ended March
Particulars Note No. 31, 2025
1 INCOME -
I EXPENSES
(a) Finance costs 13 -
{b) Other expenses 14 14.83
Total Expenses 14.83
Il Loss before tax (! - Il) (14.83)
IV Tax Expense 15 -
V Loss for the period (1l - IV) (14.83)
Vi Other Comprehensive income -
VIl Total comprehensive loss (V + V}) (14.83)
Vill Earnings per equity share: (Face value of Rs 10 per share)
(1) Basic eamings per share 16 (148.30)
(2) Diluted earnings per share (148.30)
Material accounting policies 2A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Vypak Properties Private Limited
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003 CIN; UGB100MH2024PTC424443
ﬁ/ K AAMF [
f ;i
D~ / W A
per Ravi Bansal Keyur Shah Gaurav fain //
Partner Director Directo/ \1 -
[ e
Membership No: 049365 DIN No: 00332145 DIN Ng ng 99934
Place: Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date: Aprit 30, 2025 Date: April 30, 2025 DateyApril 30, 2025




Vypak Properties Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss before tax

Working capital adjustments :
Other financial asset

Inventories
Trade payables
Other current fiabilities

NET CASH FLOW USED FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES - (A)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :
Purchase of property, pland and equipment, including CWIP

NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES - (B)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from long term borrowings

Proceeds from short term borrowings

Interest paid

Proceeds from issue of share capital
NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (C)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer note 6)

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

&

P Qe

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs)
Period ended March 31,
2025

(14.83)

(14.83)

(0.10)
(34,864.49)
12,554.08

51.32

(22,259.19)

(22,274.02)

(20.50)

(20.50)

22,033.52
476.21

(155.44)
1.00

22,355.29

60.77

60.77

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Vypak Properties Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC424443

Fy

Keyur Shah
Director

DIN No: 00332145
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

6\ AO
§
Gaunr; \)\\Jain
Direc‘tor'?l_
DIN No: 09199934
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025



Vypak Properties Private Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Equity share capital Other equity Total equity

(Retained

earnings)

Number of shares Amount Amount

As at April 30, 2024 - - - -
Issue of equity shares 10,000 1.00 - 1.00
Loss for the period - - (14.83) (14.83)
As at March 31, 2025 10,000 1.00 (14.83) {13.83)

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

P

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: Aprit 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Vypak Properties

p

CIN: U68100MH2024PTC424443

Uy

o)

\

Keyur Shah Gaurav Jain
Director Dire%tér

DIN No: 00332145 DIN g\ld: 09199934
Place : Mumbai Place, ;jMumbai

Date: April 30, 2025 Date: April 30, 2025

/



Vypak Properties Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate information

Vypak Properties Private Limited (“the Company”) (CIN. U68100MH2024PTC424443), a wholly owned subsidiary of Birla
Estates Private Limited, is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated on April 30, 2024 under the provisions
of the Companies Act 2013, applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Birla Aurora, Level 8, Dr
Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400030. The Company is principally engaged in the business of Real Estate.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of Directors on April 30,
2025.

2A. Material accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {(as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirement of division Il of Schedule 11l to Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant schedule I} as applicable to financial
statement.

The Company is newly incorporated entity and has adopted Ind AS from date of incorporation. The financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial asset and liability which have been measured at
fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Rs. (Z} and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:
e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
s  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e |tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

The normal operating cycle of the Company depends on signing of agreement, size of the project, phasing of the project,
type of development, project complexities, approvals needed and realisation of project into cash and cash equivalents and
range from 3 to 7 years. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current
based on operating cycle of respective projects. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-
current based on a period of twelve months.
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2.3 Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, investments etc, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

° In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

° In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

° Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

o Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

J Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
2.4 Taxes
Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the end of the reporting
date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

sets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transactjestfataffects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

eferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

2.5 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above.

2.7 Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Rs, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at Rs spot rate at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are transiated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
2.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.




Vypak Properties Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Debt instruments at amortised cost

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments including derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.9 Inventories

Real estate activity

Direct expenditure relating to construction activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) during
construction period is inventorised to the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction
period which is not directly attributable for bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use is charged to the
statement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined based on specific identification to the construction
and real estate activity. Cost incurred/ items purchased specifically for projects are taken as consumed as and when
incurred/ received.

2.10 Earnings per share:

Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

2.11 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and is
measured with reference to the effective interest rate applicable to the respective borrowing. Borrowing costs allocated to
qualifying assets pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the
qualifying asset upto the time all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
complete.
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All other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

2.12 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

2.13 Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors monitors the operating results of its business segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or
loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. The operating segments have been
identified on the basis of nature of product / services.

The Board of Directors of the Company is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) who is assessing the financial
performance and position of the Company and makes strategic decisions.

2.14 Property, plant and equipments

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition/construction, net of accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met, directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use and initial estimate of decommissioning,
restoring and similar liabilities. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in
relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. This applies mainly to components for machinery. When
significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately
based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred.

2B. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known /
materialised.

The following are critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount recognized in the financial
statements and/or key source of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax asset that can be recognized based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset on unused tax losses during the period since management is of the
view that currently there is no certainty that there will ble profit available against which these losses will be utilized.
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NOTE:3

NOTE : 4

NOTE : 5

(a)

NOTE : 6

(@)

CAPITAL WORK IN PROGRESS (CWIP) (Rs. in lakhs)
Particular Agiat

March 31, 2025
Opening balances -
Add: Additions during the period 20.50
Less: Capitalization / deductions during the period -
Closing balances 20.50
(i) Ageing schedul
Description Amount in CWIP for a period of | Total

Le:;et::n 1-2years |2-3years ;n‘:;;than 3

As at 31 March 2025
Capital work in progress
Projects in progress 20.50 - - - 20.50

There are no projects whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its original plan for the period ended March 31, 2025.
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at
March 31, 2025

Financial asset at amortised cost
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified)

Security Deposit 0.10
Total 0.10
INVENTORIES

(At cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower) As at

March 31, 2025

Construction work in progress (including land) 36,418.88
Total : 36,418.88

Movement in Inventory Construction Work in Progress

rFar

Opening Construction work in Progress B
Add: Cost Incurred during the period

Land Cost 34,551.48
Finance Cost 1,554.39
Other Construction and Development Cost 313.01
Total Cost 36,418.88

Less: Cost related to real estate inventory recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss
Less: Cost Transferred to Finished Goods

Closing Construction Work in Progress 36,418.88

Note:
(a) Borrowing cost inventoried during the year amounts to Rs. 1554.39 Lakhs.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at
(At amortised cost) March 31, 2025

Balances with banks

- Current accounts 10.77
- Cheques on Hand 50.00
Total 60.77
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(Rs. in lakhs)
NOTE : 7 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at
March 31, 2025

(@) Authorised :
50,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 5.00
5.00
(b) Issued, Subscribed and paid up :

10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 1.00
1.00

(¢) Terms/ right attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board is subject to the approval of
shareholders except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

(d) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period.

Particulars Opening Fresh Issue I Closing

Equity shares with voting rights
Period ended 31 March 2025
No. of shares - 10,000 10,000

Amount (Rs in Lakhs) - 1.00 | 1.00

(e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company

As at
March 31, 2025

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

Number of Percentage

shares held
Equity shares with voting rights
Birla Estates Private Limited 9,999 99.99%
Total 9,999 99.99%

(f) The Company has not issued any equity shares as bonus or for consideration other than cash and has not bought back any shares during the period of five years
immediately preceding 31 March 2025.

(9) Details of shares held by promoters

Particulars No. of sh t Change No. of % of i % change
t:' ob s .are_s 4 during the shares at Total shares during the period
fetheglngz;ldg period the end of
| ofthe pert the period o
Year ended 31 March 2025
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Birla Estates Private Limited ('BEPL') 58 9,999 | 9,999 | 99.99%| 100.00%
Keyur Shah, as nominee of BEPL - | 1] 1] 0.01%| 100.00%
NOTE: 8 OTHER EQUITY As at
March 31, 2025
Retained earnings (14.83)
Total (14.83)

Nature and purpose of reserves
Retained earnings are the (losses) of the Company incurred till date by the Company
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NOTE : 9 (a)

(@)

NOTE : 9 (b)

(a)

NOTE : 10

U}

(ii)

NOTE : 11

NOTE : 12

BORROWINGS - NON CURRENT
(At amortised cost)

Unsecured

Loan from holding company including interest accrued (Rate of interest on loan as at 31.03.2025 :- 9% p.a)

(repayable from project surplus cash flow)
Total

BORROWINGS - CURRENT

Unsecured

Working capital loan from holding company (Rate of interest on loan as at 31.03.2025:- 9% p.a)

(repayable on demand)

Total

TRADE PAYABLES
(At amortised cost)

Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises
Trade payable - Other than micro and small enterprises
Total

- Related parties (Refer Note 17)
- Others

Notes

(Rs in lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2025

23,420.24

23,420.24

As at
March 31, 2025

476.21

476.21

As at
March 31, 2025

3.97
12,550.11
12,554.08

12,554.08

The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available
with the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act. There are no amounts paid / payable towards interest / principal under the

MSMED.

Trade payables ageing schedule

Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the invoice date

Less than 1-2 years 2-3years More than Provision Total

1 year 3 years for
expenses
As at 31 March 2025
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 3.97 - - 3.97
enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 12,544.17 - 5.94 12,550.11
enterprises and small enterprises o
Total 12,548.14 - 5.94 12,554.08
OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
As at

(At amortised cost)

Interest accrued on borrowings (refer note 17)
Total

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Statutory dues
- Taxes payable (other than income taxes)
Total

March 31, 2025

12.23
12.23

As at
March 31, 2025

51.32
51.32
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NOTE : 13

NOTE : 14

NOTE : 15

a)

b)

c)

NOTE : 16

(Rs in lakhs)
FINANCE COST Period ended March
31,2025
Interest on borrowings 1,664.39
Less: Finance costs inventoried (1,554.39)

Total

OTHER EXPENSES Period ended March
31, 2025
Payment to auditors (refer note A below) 6.49
Miscellaneous expenses 8.34
Total 14.83
Note (A) Payment to auditors
Statutory audit fees 2.36
Certification and other fees 4.13
o 6.49
INCOME TAX Period ended March
31,2025
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax -
Deferred tax -
Net tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss -
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income -
Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company’s tax rate:
Loss before tax (14.83)
Income tax (expense)/income calculated at 25.17% 3.73
Effect of deferred tax asset not recognized on tax losses (3.73)

Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss -

Note: The tax rate used for above tax reconciliation for 31 March 2025 is 25.17%

Deferred tax asset have not been recognised in respect of these business losses as it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future
against which net deffered asset can be utilised and there are no other tax planning opportunity or other evidence of recoverability in the near future.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS| Period ended March
31, 2025

Loss for the period (14.83)

Weighted average number of equity share outstanding 10,000

Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (148.30)
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Note 17: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Relationships:
(a) Where the control exists:
Ultimate Holding Company

Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly known as Century Textiles and Industries Limited)

Holding Company:
Birla Estates Private Limited

(b) Key management personnel/directors

Director
Keyur Shah
Gaurav Jain
(Rs. in lakhs)
Name of the related party Nature of Transactions Period ended
31 March 2025
Loans taken 22,509.73
Birla Estates Private Limited Interest expense on loans taken 1,554.39
Investment in share capital 1.00
Name of the related party Balances outstanding with Related Parties As at 31 March 2025
Birla Estates Private Limited Loans taken 22,509.73
Interest payable (considered as loan) 1,386.72
Interest payable 12.23

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

The loans from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. The non current borrowings are
generally repayable after period of 5 years from project surplus at interest rates of 9% per annum. Qutstanding balances at the period-end are
unsecured and settlement occurs in cash. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial position of the related
party and the market in which the related party operates.

NOTE 18: CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There are no amount of claims against the Company that are not acknowledged as debts or guarantees and no capital committment. There is no
contingent liability or capital commitments as of 31 March 2025.

NOTE 19: SEGMENT REPORTING

Based on the "Management Approach” as defined in ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Board of Directors evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators of business, the segments in which the Company
operates. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development which the Management and CODM recognise as the sole
business segment. Hence disclosure of segment- wise information is not required and accordingly not provided.

Note 20: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the holders
of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

Since equity is negative as at March 31, 2025 hence debt equity ratio is not computed.

Note 21: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company'’s principal financial liabilities comprise of borrowings and trade payables. The Company'’s principal financial assets include cash and
cash equivalents and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Company’s senior management provides assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board
of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. Since
there is no trade receivable during the period hence the company is not exposed to credit risk.

B. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises of three types of risks — interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk.

rrency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
any's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to operating activity (when revenue or expense
ingted in foreign currency)

(iii) Equity Price Risk
The Company is not exposed to equity price risk which arise from investment measured at fair value through pi
no such investment.
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C. Liquidity risk

(i) Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows on daily, monthly and yearly basis. The Company ensures that there is a free credit limit available
at the start of the year which is sufficient for repayments getting due in the ensuing year.

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

(Rs. in lakhs)

As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1-5 years > 5years Total
months
Long term borrowings, including interest accrued - - - - 23,420.24 23,420.24
Short term borrowings
-working capital loan 476.21 - - - - 476.21
Trade payables -
-Trade payables - micro, small & medium enterprises - 3.97 - - - 3.97
-Trade payables - other than micro, small & medium enterprises - - 12,550.11 - 12,550.11
Other financial liabities
-interest accrued on short term borrowing. I - - 12.23 - 12.23
Total 476.21 3.97 12,562.34 - 23,420.24 36,462.76

(iii) Maturities of financial assets

The following table details the Company’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial
assets including interest that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company’s liquidity risk

management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and liability basis.

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1-5 years > 5years Total
months
Other financial assets
-Security deposit - - - 0.10 - 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents - 60.77 - | - - 60.77
Total - 60.77 - | 0.10 60.87
Note 22: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortized cost
(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars As at 31 March 2025
Carrying Value Amortised
Value
Financial asset (amortized cost)
Other financial assets
-Security deposit 0.10 0.10
Cash and cash edquivalents 60.77 60.77
Total 60.87 60.87
Financial liabilities (amortized cost)
Long term borrowings, including interest accrued 23,420.24 23,420.24
Short term borrowings
~working capital loan 476.21 476.21
Trade payables
-Trade payables - micro, small & medium enterprises 397 397
-Trade payables - other than micro, small & medium enterprises 12,550.11 12,550.11
Other financial liabities
-interest accrued on short term borrowing 12.23 12.23
36.462.76 36,462.76
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Note 23: Ratio Analysis and its elements

“

®

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-25* Remarks
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 279 -
Debt equity ratio Total debt Shareholder's Equity - Refer note (i) below
Debt service coverage ratio Eamings for debt service= Net profit Debt service= Interest payment + - Refer note (iii) below
after tax + non cash operating expense principal repayments
Retum on equity ratio Net profit / (loss) after taxes Total shareholder's equity 107.23% -
Inventory turover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory - Refer note (i) below
Trade receivable turnover ratio Net sales = Gross sales - sales return Average trade receivable - Refer note (i) below
Trade payable tumover ratio Net purchases = Gross purchases - Average trade payables - Refer note (i) below
purchase return
Net capital turnover ratio Net sales = Total sales - sales return Working capital = Current assets — - Refer note (i) below
Current liabilities
Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales = Total sales - sales return - Refer note (i) below
Return on capital employed Eamings before interest and taxes Capital employed = Net worth + Total (0.06%) -
debt
Return on investment Interest (finance income) Investment - Refer note (i} below

Notes

(i) Since the company is not generating any revenue and profits during the current period, hence the ratios are not computed.

(i) The Company does not have investment and interest income, hence the ratio is not computed.

(iify The Company does not have any business and no debt is required to be serviced during the period and accordingly debt equity ratio and debt service coverage
ratio are not applicable to the Company.

*This is the first year of incorporation of the Company, hence ratio of comparative period cannot be provided.

Note 24: Other Statutory Information

0 No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988
and rules made thereunder.
(i) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off
(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:
@ directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(@) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vii) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
(viiiy The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Note 25:

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data for users with
certain privileged access rights to the SAP HANA application and/or the underlying HANA database. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was
noted in respect of other software. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Note 26:

The Company has been incorporated on 30 April 2024 and hence pursuant to the provisions of section 2(41) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 40 of the
Companies (Incorporation) Rule 2014, first financial statement shall commence from the date of incorporation i.e 30 Aprit 2024 and end on 31 March 2025, both days
inclusive. Accordingly, these financials present first period of operation for the company and hence there are no comparative numbers which are required to be
disclosed in the financial statement.

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

P

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Vypak Properties Private Limited

CIN: U68100MH2024PTC424443

Keyur Shah Gaurav Jain
Director

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

DIN No: 00332145
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

Director, *
DIN No:§9{29934
Place : Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Vibhavya Properties Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Vibhavya Properties Private Limited (“the Company"),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’'s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safequards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(€))

()

©

(D

()

®

@

()

0]

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 30, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report.

The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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Vi.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software (refer Note 21 to the financial statements).
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWH9587

Mumbai

April 30, 2025



Vibhavya Properties Private Limited Page 5 of 9

Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date of Vibhavya Properties Private Limited

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

vi.

vii.

According to information and explanations given by the Management, the Company did not have
any Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets, hence sub clause (a) regarding
maintenance of proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Properly. Plant and Equipment: and intangibles assets: (b) regarding procedure of physical
verification by management during the year and any material discrepancies noticed on such
verification:(c) regarding title deeds of immoveable properties classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment are being held in the name of the Company; and (d) regarding the valuation to its
Property. Plant and Equipment (Including Right of use assets) or intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2025 are not applicable; (a)(A) The Company has not capitalized any tangible
asset in the books of the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(A)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company does not have inventories and accordingly, the requirement to report under
clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company..

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a), (¢), (d), (&) and (f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products / services of the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, income-tax, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable.
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viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and
service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares / fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by the cost auditor or secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are
not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of
the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.
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Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

XVii.

xviii.

Xix.

XX.

(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xiv)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a core investment company as defined by the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other companies part of the group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash loss during the current year amounting to INR 0.65 lakhs.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 19 to the Ind AS financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Sd/-

Per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWH9587

Mumbai
April 30, 2025
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements of
Vibhavya Properties Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Vibhavya
Properties Private Limited (“the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’'s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company'’s policies, the safequarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note")
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWH9587

Mumbai
April 30, 2025



Vibhavya Properties Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025
(Rs. in lakhs)
Note No. As at
March 31, 2025

I ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS

(a) Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets 3 0.10
SUB-TOTAL 0.10
CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Financial assets
(i) Cash and cash equivalents 4 0.63
(b) Other current assets 5 0.01
SUB-TOTAL 0.64
TOTAL 0.74
I EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 6 1.00
(b) Other equity 7 (0.85)
SUB-TOTAL 0.15
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
Trade payables 8
1)  Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises -
2) Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.54
(b) Other current liabilities 9 0.05
SUB-TOTAL 0.59
TOTAL 0.74
Material accounting policies 2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Vibhavya Properties Private Limited

Sa/- Sd/- Sd/-
per Ravi Bansal Keyur Shah Naveen N
Partner Director Director

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

DIN No: 00332145
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

DIN No: 08015285
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025



Vibhavya Properties Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

\

\

Vil

INCOME

EXPENSES

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Loss before tax (I - 1)

Tax Expense

Loss for the period (Il - IV)

Other Comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss (V + VI)

Earnings per equity share: (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)
(1) Basic earnings per share

(2) Diluted earnings per share

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

Note No.

10

11

12

2A

(Rs. in lakhs)

Period ended March
31, 2025

0.85
0.85

(0.85)

0.85

0.85

(8.50)
(8.50)

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Vibhavya Properties Private Limited

Sd/-

Keyur Shah
Director

DIN No: 00332145
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

Sd/-

Naveen N

Director

DIN No: 08015285
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025



Vibhavya Properties Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the period

ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs)
Equity share capital Other equity Total equity

(Retained

earnings)

Number of Amount Amount

shares
As at May 30, 2024 - - - -

Issue of equity shares 10,000 1.00 1.00
Loss for the period (0.85) (0.85)
As at March 31, 2025 10,000 1.00 (0.85) 0.15

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Vibhavya Properties Private Limited

Sd/-

Keyur Shah
Director

DIN No: 00332145
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

Sd/-

Naveen N

Director

DIN No: 08015285
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025




Vibhavya Properties Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss before tax

Working capital adjustment

Other financial asset
Other assets
Trade payables

Other current liabilities

Less: Tax paid

NET CASH FLOW USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES - (A)

B. CASHFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES - (B)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from issue of share capital

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (C)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer note 4)

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date

ForSRB C&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

Sd/-

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs)
Period ended March 31,

2025

(0.85)

(0.85)

(0.10)
(0.01)

0.54
0.05

0.48

(0.37)

1.00

1.00

0.63

0.63

For and on behalf of Board of Directors
Vibhavya Properties Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/-

Keyur Shah Naveen N
Director Director

DIN No: 00332145  DIN No: 08015285
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025 Date: April 30, 2025

of



Vibhavya Properties Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate information

Vibhavya Properties Private Limited (“the Company”) (CIN. U68100MH2024PTC426210), a wholly owned subsidiary of Birla
Estates Private Limited, is a private company domiciled in India and is incorporated on May 30, 2024 under the provisions
of the Companies Act 2013, applicable in India. The registered office of the company is located at Birla Aurora, Level 8, Dr
Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400030. The Company is principally engaged in the business of Real Estate.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of Directors on April 30,
2025.

2A. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirement of division Il of Schedule Il to Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant schedule Ill) as applicable to financial
statement.

The Company is newly incorporated entity and has adopted Ind AS from date of incorporation. The financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial asset and liability which have been measured at
fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Rs. (%) and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e [tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e [tis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e [tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

The normal operating cycle of the Company depends on signing of agreement, size of the project, phasing of the project,
type of development, project complexities, approvals needed and realisation of project into cash and cash equivalents and
range from 3 to 7 years. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current
based on operating cycle of respective projects. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-
current based on a period of twelve months.

2.3 Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, investments etc, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability



Vibhavya Properties Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

. Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

. Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.

2.4 Taxes

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the end of the reporting
date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

sets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

eferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.



Vibhavya Properties Private Limited
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

2.5 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above.

2.7 Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Rs, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at Rs spot rate at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

2.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortised cost

e Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e Debt instruments including derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Financial liabilities
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Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.9 Earnings per share:
Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

2.10 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

2B. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known /
materialised.

The following are critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount recognized in the financial
statements and/or key source of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax asset that can be recognized based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset on unused tax losses during the period since management is of the
view that currently there is no certainty that there will be taxable profit available against which these losses will be utilized.
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NOTE : 3 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Financial asset at amorised cost
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified)
(@)  Security Deposit
Total

NOTE : 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(At amortised cost)
(a) Balances with banks
- Current accounts
Total

NOTE: 5 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
(a) Advance to vendor
Total

NOTE : 6 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(@) Authorised :

50,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

(b) Issued, Subscribed and paid up :

10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each.

() Terms/right attached to equity shares

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at
March 31, 2025

0.10
0.10

As at
March 31, 2025

0.63

0.63

As at
March 31, 2025

0.01
0.01

As at
March 31, 2025

5.00

5.00

1.00
1.00

The Company has only one class of equity share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board is subject to the approval of
shareholders except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.

(d)  Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period.

Particulars Opening Fresh Issue Closing
Equity shares with voting rights
period ended 31 March 2025
No. of shares - 10,000 10,000
Amount (Rs. in Lakhs) - 1.00 1.00
(e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As at

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

March 31, 2025

Number of Percentage
shares held
Equity shares with voting rights
Birla Estates Private Limited 9,999 99.99%
Total 9,999 99.99%

(f) The Company has not issued any equity shares as bonus or for consideration other than cash and has not bought back any shares during the year of five years

immediately preceding 31 March 2025.

(g) Details of shares held by promoters

NOTE: 7

Retained earnings
Total
Nature and purpose of reserves

Retained earnings are the losses of the Company incurred till date by the Company

Particular No. of shares | Change during | No. of shares % of % change
at the the year at the end of Total shares during the year
beginning of the year
the year

Period ended 31 March 2025

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid

Birla Estates Private Limited (BEPL") - 0,999 | 0,999 | 99.99%] 100.00%
Keyur Shah, as nominee of BEPL - | 1 l 1 l 0.01%| 100.00%

OTHER EQUITY
As at

March 31, 2025

(0.85)
(0.85)
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NOTE : 8

@

(ii)

NOTE: 9

NOTE : 10

NOTE : 11

a)

b)

d)

NOTE : 12

TRADE PAYABLES (Rs. in lakhs)
(At amortised cost) As at
March 31, 2025

Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises -
Trade payable - Other than micro and small enterprises 0.54

Total 0.54

- Related parties (Refer Note 13) -
- Others 0.54

Notes
The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available
with the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act. There are no amounts paid / payable towards interest / principal under the MSMED.

Trade payables ageing schedule (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the invoice date
Less than 1-2 years 2-3years  More Provision Total
1year than for

3years expenses

As at 31 March 2025
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small - - - - - -

enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises - - - - 0.54 0.54
Total - - - - 0.54 0.54

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at
March 31, 2025
Statutory dues
- Taxes payable (other than income taxes) 0.05
Total 0.05

OTHER EXPENSES

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Payment to auditors (refer note A below) 0.59
Miscellaneous expenses 0.26
Total 0.85

Note (A) Payment to auditors
Statutory audit fees 0.59
0.59

INCOME TAX

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current tax -
Deferred tax -
Net tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss -

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income -
Amounts recognised directly in equity -

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Loss before tax (0.85)
Income tax (expense)/income calculated at 25.17% 0.21
Effect of deferred tax asset not recognized on tax losses (0.21)

Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss -

Note: The tax rate used for above tax reconciliation for 31 March 2025 is 25.17%

Deferred tax asset have not been recognised in respect of these business losses as it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future
against which net deffered asset can be utilised and there are no other tax planning opportunity or other evidence of recoverability in the near future.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Loss for the period (0.85)
Weighted average number of equity share outstanding 10,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (8.50)
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Note 13: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Relationships:
(a) Where the control exists:

Ultimate Holding Company
Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly known as Century Textiles and Industries Limited)

Holding Company:
Birla Estates Private Limited

(b) Key management personnel/directors

Director
Keyur Shah
Naveen N
(Rs. in lakhs)
Name of the related party Nature of transaction Year Ended
31 March 2025
Birla Estates Private Limited Investment in share capital 1.00
Name of the related party Balances outstanding with Related Parties As at
31 March 2025
Birla Estates Private Limited Share capital 1.00

NOTE 14: CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

There are no amount of claims against the Company that are not acknowledged as debts or guarantees and no capital commitments. There is no
contingent liability or capital commitments as of 31 March 2025.

NOTE 15 : SEGMENT REPORTING

Based on the "Management Approach" as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Board of Directors evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators of business, the segments in which the Company
operates. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development which the Management and CODM recognise as the sole
business segment. Hence disclosure of segment- wise information is not required and accordingly not provided.

Note 16: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the holders
of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

Since the Company does not have any business as at March 31, 2025 hence debt equity ratio is not computed.

Note 17: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Company’s senior management provides assurance that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board
of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. Since
there is no trade receivable during the period, the company is not exposed to credit risk.

B. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises of three types of risks — interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and equity price risk.

(i) Currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

(ii) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fincacial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
As the company doesnot have any floating interest rate borrowing or deposit, it is not exposed to interest rate risk.

(iii) Equity Price Risk
The Company is not exposed to equity price risk which arise from investment measured at fairvalue through profit and loss as the company holds
no such investment.
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C. Liquidity risk
(i) Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows yearly basis. The Company ensures that there is a free credit limit available at the start of the year which is sufficient for

repayments getting due in the ensuing year.

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 3to 12 months 1-5years >5years Total
months
Trade Payables
-Trade payables - micro, small & medium enterprises - - - - - -
-Trade payables - other than micro, small & medium enterprises - 0.54 - - - 0.54
Total - 0.54 - - 0.01 0.54

(i) Maturities of financial assets

The following table details the Company’s expected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest
that will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of information on non-derivative financial assets is necessary in order to understand the Company’s liquidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and

liability basis.
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 3to 12 months 1-5years >5years Total
months
Other financial assets
-Security deposit - - - 0.10 - 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents 0.63 - - - 0.63
Total - 0.63 - 0.10 - 0.73
Note 18: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortized cost
(Rs. in lakhs)

As at 31 March 2025

Carrying Value

Amortised value

Financial asset (amortized cost)
Other financial assets

-Security deposit 0.10 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents 0.63 0.63
Total 0.73 0.73
Financial liabilities (amortized cost)

Trade payables

-Trade payables - micro, small & medium enterprises - -

-Trade payables - other than micro, small & medium enterprises 0.54 0.54
Total 0.54 0.54
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Note 19: Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-25* Remarks
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 1.08 -
Debt equity ratio Total debt Shareholder’s Equity - Refer note (iii) below
Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for debt service = Net profit Debt service= Interest payment + - Refer note (jii) below
after tax + non cash operating expense principal repayments
Return on equity ratio Net profit after taxes Total shareholder’s equity -567% -
Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average Inventory - Refer note (i) below
Trade receivable turnover ratio Net sales = Gross sales - sales return Average trade receivable - Refer note (i) below
Trade payable turnover ratio Net purchases = Gross purchases - Average trade payables - Refer note (i) below
purchase return
Net capital turnover ratio Net sales = Total sales - sales return Working capital = Current assets — - Refer note (i) below
Current liabilities
Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales = Total sales - sales return - Refer note (i) below
Return on capital employed Earnings before interest and taxes Capital employed = Net worth + Total (5.67) -
debt
Return on investment Interest (finance income) Investment - _Refer note (ii) below

Notes

(i) Since the company is not generating any revenue and profits during the current period, hence the ratios are not computed.

(i) The Company does not have investment and interest income, hence the ratio is not computed.

(i) The Company does not have any business and debt and accordingly debt equity ratio and debt service coverage ratio are not applicable to the Company.
*This is the first year of incorporation of the Company, hence ratio of comparative period cannot be provided.

Note 20: Other Statutory Information

() No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder.
(i) ~ The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off
(i)  The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period
(iv)  The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year
(v)  The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding
that the Intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries)
or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi)  The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in
writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(vi) The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

(vii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Note 21:

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the period for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data for users
with certain privileged access rights to the SAP HANA application and/or the underlying HANA database. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with
was noted in respect of other software. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

Note 22:

The Company has been incorporated on 30 May 2024 and hence pursuant to the provisions of section 2(41) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 40 of the
Companies (Incorporation) Rule 2014, first financial statement shall commence from the date of incorporation i.e 30 May 2024 and ends on 31 March 2025, both
days inclusive. Accordingly, these financials present first year of operation for the Company and hence there are no comparative numbers which are required to be
disclosed in the financial statement.

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
Vibhavya Properties Private Limited

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
per Ravi Bansal Keyur Shah Naveen N
Partner Director Director

DIN No: 00332145
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

DIN No: 08015285
Place : Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai
Date: April 30, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Isira Realcon Private Limited
(formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha
Properties Private Limited) (the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025,
the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash
Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the

financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the '‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the
Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeqguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
==, the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
[ ?:iy@ether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness
of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
.other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,




SRBC&COLLP

Chartered Accountants

Isira Realcon Private Limited Page 3 of 9
(formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)

related safeqguards.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act , we give in the
“Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on April 30, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

() The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(@) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure 2" to this report.

(h) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company.

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide
'\ any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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vi.

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software (refer Note 21 to the financial statements).
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail
feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

Pt

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWE9849

Mumbai

April 30, 2025
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements" of our report of even date of Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as
Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we state that:

vi.

vil.

According to information and explanations given by the Management, the Company did not have
any Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets, hence sub clause (a) regarding
maintenance of proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation
of Properly. Plant and Equipment: and intangibles assets: (b) regarding procedure of physical
verification by management during the year and any material discrepancies noticed on such
verification:(c) regarding title deeds of immoveable properties classified as Property, Plant and
Equipment are being held in the name of the Company; and (d) regarding the valuation to its
Property. Plant and Equipment (Including Right of use assets) or intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2025 are not applicable; (a)(A) The Company has not capitalized any tangible
asset in the books of the Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(A)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company does not have inventories and accordingly, the requirement to report under
clause 3(ii)a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company..

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of INR five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets of the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iiXb)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee and provided security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a), (c), (d), (e) and (f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided
security and granted loans and advances to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement
to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products / services of the Company.

(a) The Company is reqular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, income-tax, Cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.
According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
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viii.

xi.

Xii.

xiii.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and
service tax and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds raised
on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) The Company does not have any subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares / fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by the cost auditor or secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Ind AS financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are
not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of
the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.
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Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

Xvii.

xviii.

XiX.

XX.

(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal
audit system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clause 3(xiv)}a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a core investment company as defined by the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(d) There are no other companies part of the group, hence, the requirement to report on clause
(xviXd) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has incurred cash loss during the current year amounting to INR 0.59 lakhs.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 19 to the Ind AS financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the Ind AS financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

(a) The provisions of Section 135 to the Companies Act, 2013 in relation to Corporate Social
Responsibility is not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

R

Per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWE9849

Mumbai
April 30, 2025
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements of
Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“"the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Isira Realcon
Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited) (“the Company™) as of
March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on [the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI")].
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these financial

statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
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unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For SRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003

P

per Ravi Bansal

Partner

Membership Number: 049365
UDIN: 25049365BMOAWE9849

Mumbai
April 30, 2025




Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025

(a)
(b)

(a)
(b)

(a)

(b)

ASSETS

NON CURRENT ASSETS
(i) Other financial assets
SUB-TOTAL

CURRENT ASSETS
Financial assets

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Other current assets

SUB-TOTAL
TOTAL

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Equity share capital
Other equity

SUB-TOTAL
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables

(Rs. in lakhs)

1)  Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises -
2)  Total outstanding dues of trade payables other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises
Other current liabilities

SUB-TOTAL
TOTAL

Material accounting policies

As at
Note No. March 31, 2025
3 010
0.10
4 0.64
5 0.26
0.90
1.00
6 1.00
7 (0.59)
0.41
8
0.54
9 0.05
0.59
1.00
2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC & COLLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number 324982E / E300003

ﬁ(

per Ravi Bansal
Partner

Membership No: 049365
Place: Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Isira Realcon
Private Limited
CIN: U68100MH2024PTC428360

i o
< AN
) L
Gaurav Jain keyur Shah
Director Director
/&57;5 No: 09199934 DIN No: 00332145
Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025 Date: April 30, 2025




Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)

Statement of profit and loss for the period ended March 31, 2025

Particulars

Vi

Vi

Vil

INCOME

EXPENSES
Other expenses
Total Expenses

Loss before tax (I - II)

Tax Expense

Loss for the period (il - IV)

Other Comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss (V + Vi)

Earnings per equity share: (Face value of Rs 10 per share)
(1)  Basic earnings per share

(2) Diluted earnings per share

Material accounting policies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

(Rs. in lakhs)

Period ended

A b March 31, 2025
10 0.59
0.59
(0.59)
11 )
(0.59)
(0.59)
12
(5.90)
(5.90)
2A
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Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Statement of changes in equity for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs)

Other equity
Particulars Equity share capital (Retained
earnings) | Total equity
Number of shares Amount Amount
As at July 4, 2024 - - - -
Issue of equity shares 10,000 1.00 - 1.00
Loss for the period - - (0.59) (0.59)
As at March 31, 2025 10,000 1.00 (0.59) 0.41

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)

Cash flow statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Loss before tax

Working capital adjustment :

Other financial asset
Other assets
Trade payables

Other current liabilities

Less: Tax paid

NET CASH FLOW USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES - (A)

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES :

(Rs. in lakhs)

Period ended
March 31, 2025

(0.59)

(0.59)

(0.10)
(0.26)
0.54

0.05

0.23

(0.36)

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM/ (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES - (B) -

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES :
Proceeds from issue of share capital

NET CASH FLOW GENERATED FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES - (C)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period (Refer note 4)

Material accounting policies - Refer note 2A

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements
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Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

1. Corporate information

Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited) (“the Company”} (CIN.
U68100MH2024PTC428360), a wholly owned subsidiary of Birla Estates Private Limited, is a private company domiciled in
India and is incorporated on July 4, 2024 under the provisions of the Companies Act 2013, applicable in India. The
registered office of the company is located at Birla Aurora, Level 8 Dr Annie Besant Road, Worli, Mumbai 400030. The
Company is principally engaged in the business of Real Estate.

The financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the board of Directors on April 30,
2025.

2A. Material accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation
requirement of division Il of Schedule Ill to Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant schedule Iil) as applicable to financial
statement.

The Company is newly incorporated entity and has adopted Ind AS from date of incorporation. The financial statements
have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for certain financial asset and liability which have been measured at
fair value (Refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in Rs. (%) and all values are rounded to nearest lakhs.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

e  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

e Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:
e |tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. The operating cycle is the time between
the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.

The normal operating cycle of the Company depends on signing of agreement, size of the project, phasing of the project,
type of development, project complexities, approvals needed and realisation of project into cash and cash equivalents and
range from 3 to 7 years. Accordingly, project related assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-current
based on operating cycle of respective projects. All other assets and liabilities have been classified into current and non-
current based on a period of twelve months.

2.3 Fair Value Measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as derivatives, investments etc, at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market_participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption_that the

trans‘fégthQ,; i’gé‘l-l the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
QT
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Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

° In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

° In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

° Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

° Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly observable

° Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is

unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant notes.
2.4 Taxes

Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted by the end of the reporting
date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.

sets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

eferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilised.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.




Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction in OCI.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

2.5 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

2.6 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above.

2.7 Foreign currencies

The Company’s financial statements are presented in Rs, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at Rs spot rate at the date the transaction first
qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

2.8 Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e  Debtinstruments at amortised cost
e  Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e  Debt instruments including derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
e  Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e,
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Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Notes to financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2025

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.9 Earnings per share:
Basic Earnings per share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the period attributable to equity holders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

2.10 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in
the financial statements.

2B. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.
Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known /
materialised.

The following are critical judgements and estimations that have been made by the management in the process of applying
the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amount recognized in the financial
statements and/or key source of estimation uncertainty that may have a significant risk of causing material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of
deferred tax asset that can be recognized based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with
future tax planning strategies.

The Company has not recognized deferred tax asset on unused tax losses during the period since management is of the
view that currently there is no certainty that there will be taxable profit available against which these losses will be utilized.




Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Notes to financial statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

(Rs. in lakhs)

NOTE: 3 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS As at
S March 31, 2025
Financial asset at amorised cost
(Unsecured considered good, unless otherwise specified)
(@) Security Deposit 0.10
Total 0.10
NOTE : 4 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(At amortised cost)
As at
March 31, 2025
(a) Balances with banks
- Current accounts 0.64
Total 0.64
NOTE: 5 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at
March 31, 2025
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
(@) Advance to vendor 0.26
Total 0.26
NOTE: 6 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
As at
March 31, 2025
(@) Authorised :
50,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each 5.00
5.00
(b) lssued, Subscribed and paid up :
10,000 Equity shares of Rs.10/- each. 1.00
1.00
(c) Terms/ right attached to equity shares
The Company has only one class of equity share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share. The dividend proposed by the Board is subject to the approval of
shareholders except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after
distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to their shareholding.
(d R of the of shares ding at the beginning and at the end of the period.
Particulars Opening Fresh Issue Closing
Equity shares with voting rights
Period ended 31 March 2025
No. of shares o 10,000 10,000
Amount (Rs. in Lakhs). - 1.00 1.00
(e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the Company
As at

March 31, 2025

Class of shares / Name of shareholder

Number of Percentage
shares held
Equity shares with voting rights
Birla Estates Private Limited 9,999 99.99%
Total 9,999 99.99%

(f) The Company has not issued any equity shares as bonus or for consideration other than cash and has not bought back any shares during the period of five years
immediately preceding 31 March 2025

(g) Details of shares held by promoters
Particular No. of shares | Change during | No. of shares % of % change
at the the period at the end of Total shares during the period
beginning of the period
the period
Period ended 31 March 2025
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Birla Estates Private Limited (BEPL') -1 9,999 | 9,999 | 99.99%| 100.00%
Keyur Shah, as nominee of BEPL - 1 1] 0.01%] 100.00%
NOTE:7 OTHER EQUITY
As at

March 31, 2025

(0.59)

Retained earnings

Total
Nature and purpose of reserves
Retained eamings are the losses of the Company incurred till date by the Company




Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Notes to financial statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

NOTE: 8

(i)

(ii)

NOTE: 9

NOTE : 10

NOTE : 11

a)

<)

d)

NOTE : 12

(Rs. in lakhs)
TRADE PAYABLES

(At amortised cost) As at
March 31, 2025

Trade payable - Micro and small enterprises -

Trade payable - Other than micro and small enterprises 0.54
Total o054
- Related parties (Refer Note 13) &

- Others 0.54
Notes

The above information has been provided as available with the Company to the extent such parties could be identified on the basis of the information available
with the Company regarding the status of suppliers under the MSMED Act. There are no amounts paid / payable towards interest / principal under the MSMED.

Trade payables ageing schedule (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for the following periods from the invoice date
Less than 1-2 years 2-3years More Provision Total
1 year than for

3years expenses

As at 31 March 2025
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small

enterprises - - - - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro

enterprises and small enterprises - - - 3 0.54 0.54
Total - - - - 0.54 0.54

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

As at
March 31, 2025
Statutory dues
- Taxes payable (other than income taxes) 0.05

Total 0.05

OTHER EXPENSES
Period ended
March 31, 2025

Payment to auditors (refer note A below) 0.59
Total 0.59

Note (A) Payment to auditors (including GST)

Statutory audit fees 0.59
0.59

INCOME TAX

Period ended
March 31, 2025

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss
Current tax -

Deferred tax TSR S
Net tax expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss -
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income -

Amounts recognised directly in equity &

Reconciliation of income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's tax rate:

Loss before tax (0.59)
Income tax (expense)income calculated at 25.17% 0.15
Effect of deferred tax asset not recognized on tax losses (0.15

Income tax expense recognised In profit or loss -

Note: The tax rate used for above tax reconciliation for 31 March 2025 is 25.17%

Deferred tax asset have not been recognised in respect of these business losses as it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in the future
against which net deffered asset can be utilised and there are no other tax planning opportunity or other evidence of recoverability in the near future.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Period ended
March 31, 2025

Loss for the year (0.59)
Weighted average number of equity share outstanding 10,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rs.) (5.90)

Note: During the period ended March 31, 2025, there is loss and hence there will be no dilution in case of losses.




Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Notes to financial statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note 13: RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Relationships:
(a) Where the control exists:

Ultimate Holding Company
Aditya Birla Real Estate Limited (formerly known as Century Textiles and Industries Limited)

Holding Company:
Birla Estates Private Limited

(b) Key management personnel/directors

Director
Gaurav Jain
Keyur Shah
(Rs. in lakhs)
Name of the related party Nature of transaction Period ended
March 31, 2025
Birla Estates Private Limited Investment in share capital 1.00
Name of the related party Balances outstanding with Related Parties As at
31 March 2025
Birla Estates Private Limited Share Capital 1.00

NOTE 14: CONTINGENT LIABILITY AND CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
There are no amount of claims against the Company that are not acknowledged as debts or guarantees and no capital commitments. There is no
contingent liability or capital commitments as of 31 March 2025.

NOTE 15 : SEGMENT REPORTING

Based on the "Management Approach” as defined in Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the Board of Directors evaluates the Company's
performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of various performance indicators of business, the segments in which the Company
operates. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of real estate development which the Management and CODM recognise as the sole
business segment. Hence disclosure of segment- wise information is not required and accordingly not provided.

Note 16: CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the holders
of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder value.

The Company does not have any business and debt during the period and accordingly no capital management is required.

Note 17: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise of trade payables. The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents and other financial assets that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks.
The Company's senior management provides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company's policies and risk objectives. The Board
of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below.

A. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract leading to a financial loss. Since
there is no trade receivable during the period hence the company is not exposed to credit risk.

B. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises of three types of risks — interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk.

(i) Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
The company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to operating activity (when revenue or expense
denominated in foreign currency)

Company currently does not have any foreign currency exposure.

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fincacial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
As the company doesnot have any floating interest rate borrowing or deposit, it is not exposed to interest rate risk.

(iii) Equity Price Risk
The Company is not exposed to equity price risk which arise from investment measured at fairvalue through profit and loss as the company holds




Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Notes to financial statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

C. Liquidity risk

(i) Liquidity risk management

The Company manages liquidity risk by continuously monitoring forecast
of the year which is sufficient for repayments getting due in the ensuing year.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities
The following tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods. Tl
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

and actual cash flows on daily, monthly and yearly basis. The Company ensures that there is a free credit limit available at the start

he amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the

Rs. in lakhs)
Total

As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1-5 years > 5 years
months
Trade Payables
_Trade payables - other than micro, small & medium enterprises - 0.54 - - - 0.54
Total - 0.54 - e 7 0.54

(ili) Maturities of financial assets
The following table details the Company's ex|

will be earned on those assets. The inclusion of s necessary in order to understand the Company's liq

f information on non-derivative financial assets i

pected maturity for its non-derivative financial assets. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted

contractual maturities of the financial assets including interest that

uidity risk management as the liquidity is managed on a net asset and

liability basis.
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025 On Demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1-5 years > 5years Total
months
Other financial assets
-Security deposit - - - - 0.10 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents 0.64 & - 0.64
Total - 0.64 - - 0.10 0.74
Note 18: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT
Financial assets and liabilities that are measured at amortized cost
(Rs. in lakhs)
As at 31 March 2025
Carrying Value Amortised value
Financial asset (amortized cost)
Other financial assets
-Security deposit 0.10 0.10
Cash and cash equivalents 0.64 0.64
Total 0.74 0.74
Financial liabilities (amortized cost)
Trade payables
-Trade payables - other than micro small & medium enterprises 0.54 0.54
Total 0.54 0.54




Isira Realcon Private Limited (formerly known as Adhyasha Properties Private Limited)
Notes to financial statement for the period ended March 31, 2025

Note 19: Ratio Analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-25* Remarks

Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 1.53 -

Debt equity ratio Total debt Shareholder's Equity - Refer note (iii) below

Debt service coverage ratio Earnings for debt service = Net profit Debt service= |Interest payment + - Refer note (jii) below
after tax + non cash operating expense principal repayments

Return on equity ratio Net profit after taxes Total shareholder's equity (143.90%) -

Inventory turnover ratio

Trade receivable turnover ratio
Trade payable turnover ratio
Net capital turnover ratio

Net profit ratio
Return on capital employed

Return on investment

Cost of goods sold

Net sales = Gross sales - sales return
Net purchases = Gross purchases -
purchase return

Net sales = Total sales - sales return

Net profit
Earnings before interest and taxes

Interest (finance income)

Average Inventory
Average trade receivable
Average trade payables

Working capital = Current assets —
Current liabilities

Net sales = Total sales - sales return
Capital employed = Net worth + Total
debt

Investment

- Refer note (i) below
- Refer note (i) below
- Refer note (i) below
(1.90) Refer note (i) below

- Refer note (i) below
(143.90%) -

- Refer note (ii) below

Notes

(i) Since the company is not generating any revenue and profits during the current period, hence the ratios are not computed.

(ii) The Company does not have investment and interest income, hence the ratio is not computed.

(iii) The Company does not have any business and debt and accordingly debt equity ratio and debt service coverage ratio are not applicable to the Company.
*This is the first year of incorporation of the Company, hence ratio of comparative period cannot be provided.

Note 20: Other Statutory Information
(i) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.
(i) The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.
(i) The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.
(iv) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
(v) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate
@ Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi) The Company has not received any fund from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
@ Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(viiy The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income

during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax
Act, 1961
(viii) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

Note 21:

The Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature is not enabled for direct changes to data for
users with certain privileged access rights to the SAP HANA application and/or the underlying HANA database. Further no instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with was noted in respect of other software. Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for
record retention.

Note 22:

The Company has been incorporated on 4 July 2024 and hence pursuant to the provisions of section 2(41) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 40 of the
Companies (Incorporation) Rule 2014, first financial statement shall commence from the date of incorporation i.e 4 July 2024 and ends on 31 March 2025, both
days inclusive. Accordingly, these financials present first year of operation for the Company and hence there are no comparative numbers which are required to
be disclosed in the financial statement.

As per our report of even date
ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors of Isira Realcon Private Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN: U68100MH2024PTC428360
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z’ / A
per Ravi Bansal Gaurav Jain /Keyur Shah
Partner Director {/Director
Membership No: 049365 DIN No: 09199934 DIN No: 00332145
Place: Mumbai Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai

Date: April 30, 2025 Date: April 30, 2025 Date: April 30, 2025
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